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INNOVATION AHEAD

Teflabs helps customers succeed through innovation

Thats why 41 of the top 50 global telecom service

providers choose Teflabs solutions for mobile and

wireline networks Our innovations help customers

get ahead by adding revenue reducing expenses

and optimizing networks

Tellabs NASDAQ TLAB is part of the SP 500 NASDAQ Global Select Market Ocean

Tomo 300 Patent Index and corporate responsibility indexes such as KLD and FTSE4Good
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To hep our customers succeed

we focus on the innovations ahead

Dear Stockhoklers Customers Employees and iends

Ic labs moved forwird during hal enging time

/008 my Sr year is CE

Like yo we ee the glob ii onomy to ng fa

Recession an financial urr oil continue to

hake the globa economy ar our ndustry for tire

foreseeable future response our cist rnem are

curtail capital spanding We have to prepare for

tnis scenar to stay ahead of whatever comes

Orr 2008 revenre fcll 10 to $1.7 billior

Yet our actions increased gross pr margins

Tough times demind decisions so we

Emphasied markets that are owi ig fate than customers overall apital spendir

su mobile backhaul oç cal networking and business ervices

Refocused our eser and develoor rent RD resour es on growth prodi cts or iding

optical network and Carr cr Etherr et lrrtern Protoc IP

Stopped developi rp thr Fe labs 88Gb fiber arc system rice wa hrgt ilikely tc

an hieve profitability

Cut osts by $100 mllion goa of improviri profitability But to do so ifort inately

had to red ice our workforce We nxpmt 2009 operating xpenses to run lower th in 2008

Strenthened the fellaos leadersHp tear by aduing tech io ocy saies market
rig xp

ee page 62
in Sc iou8y preserved La to ke our balan shee so id and avoid debt while wr cant no

to reprirclrase iares

As ar rounerd in Octob Tllahs irded non cash go dwil irnpaircient ch irge of $988 Ii

iie 41 Note Goodwill md taogible Assets The reu wa 2008 loss of $930 ilior or

$2 32 sI arm

Our balance Feet remains rock solid We hold $1 billi rr in cash caah equ valer and rketable

securities substantially dl ii highly liqur mvestrnei We have aero debt Desp te the econo mc

downturn we rc eonf dent tI at we have iliu iriera foun iatm on wh ch to old uture

Tot rues present an opportunity to pull ahead We can cm our way to success And can

change tire maeroeconioi ssor beyor our co rtro Si we Ir ive to focus on what we can no trol

It takes hard wo thoughtful actions arid sortie sac rifices

Ih ob mead firat is to rake sum that we successfully rravigate through the global economic

tunarni Secor we wont to erg from these ii enging mes cv tronger arm det rn ned if

we ran and will Jo both



The wy fmward buhds on our re trenrgth nnnv brig to help

our nst mers succeed 2008 we ivested rpproxirr atoly of

even ne or nore han $300 mIhon in RD Today more tfar L300
Hubs

engr ieers work on network and scrvce innovations uroend the

vorid is om rs nrc responding osrt vcy In fat 41 rf the world top

5C telecom service prov ders Ii we hoseir Teilabs sd itons

Do stomern face myriad challenges right now Althoc gh he usehold

per din on telecom has flattered ard landlrncs are dec rnrrig healthy

derT md onti noes for mob Ic serv ee higher spec Internet md video

Many scrvrce provrdor need to upgrade network even though revenue

arc fla As serv cc providers efrne ft or businss models to ove come th

challenge Iellab helps the generate new rover ic reduce expe and

mprove profrtability

To move forward we are mpeme ting new strateges

Focus our investments in growth products Going forward we are concentrating on growt

product whore we have competitive bid the lellafc 6000 mud /000 optical networking serre

and the Tellabs /000 and 8000 Carr er Etherire and IF serre In 009 we plan to direct 80 01

or RD ource toward our growtt rodu ts We also are inverting lellabs professiom al servce
Growth products an services goner ited more thai one third of err 2008 revenue

In 2008 we Dun hod the new Tellabs 860o and 8607 access swtches amrd the new eIIab

6335 switch rode We ann ui red thc future llabs 330 Lther iet series whir we plain to ship

2009 Our core produ the TLllahs 1000 300f 5003 irid 8100 series arid dep oyment services

oirtinuc to ncrato rove rue and prof ts we reed purrue our tratcLie

innovate growth markets Service prcvders reed to spend in areas that lellabs

so utioris address

As snobile Internet and video wow TellabsF Mobile Bmekrnaul Solutions reduce operatnrg

expcnse and iooth the trausition to 30 and 40 So far 96 custonrers including RI
Vodafoine and Mobile Hurrgary have Lhose in ocr newest solution

bar dwidtln coma id grews ii etr networks Tollabs Otie ii Networking Solutions idle

orowtln md reduw expenses For instance Ve ion delivers video ar hgh speed Internet

crv cc thiough Tellabs opt cal networking

As iterprises seek inltrn di sorvic tO th higne mvaiIubIit

ar mcli bility Tellabs isin oss Services Solutor iahle servrce

providers to deliver Fortune 500 omnpmnies doper oii Feb ibs

Ii ons for global oninectivity

le labs globa company doing business in more iac 90 ount es

Altb ogh nost of our reven ie historically has come from North America

almo 80/ of 2009 telecom capitil spend in expected to be elsewhere

Now we re optimis rig
our global sales and se cc covrage to ncrease

eurces its dc North inerica Nearly one third of our revenue omnios

mom outs do North Amrica

Pursue flawess execution strategy is only good as its execution

Our 2000 goals are to ir rease revenue from growt hrodccts enhance

gr ISS profit ncargics reduce expenses and improve customer satrsfaO on



In our industry the ongoing challenge is the law of gravity selling prices fall over time so our

costs must fall even faster Were taking long view on costs by

Increasing RD and supply chain work in lower-cost geographies that offer well-educated

workforce

Aggressively managing down product costs through value engineering

Reducing supplier complexity and simplifying with fewer components

Buying parts at lower costs and

Reducing product complexity and the number of inventory items we stock

We are intensely focused on implementing our strategies They will enable us to emerge as leaders

when spending rebounds During my 24 years at Tellabs Ive seen that when we focus we win

Were excited about whats ahead Despite todays uncertain economic climate we see clear signs of

long-term opportunities Telecom enriches lives as people use mobile phones Internet and TV to stay

connected informed educated and entertained Telecom infrastructure is an engine of growth in

emerging economies and an enabler of global commerce everywhere Tellabs enriches lives by innovat

ing the way the world connects

Half the worlds people now carry mobile phones Mobile devices are evolving to put the power of

PC in your hand opening new horizons for growth in telecom

If youve used an iPhoneTM or BlackBerry to surf the Internet you see what mean In emerging

countries such as Indonesia mobile devices are becoming the primary means of Internet access But

thats just the beginning Today with mobile devices you can pay for routine purchases in Scandinavia

start your car in Japan or obtain financial services without bank in Africa and India

Whats ahead is even more fascinating as we peer into university laboratories

At UCLA cell phone scans blood-cell samples and sends the results to lab

At Purdue University Bluetooth signals from mobile devices enable traffic monitoring

At the University of Washington mobile devices calculate commuters carbon footprints

We see growing role for telecom in reducing energy use in the years ahead For example Tellabs helped

Brazilian railroad MRS Logistica centralize its management system to enable smart logistics Now

MRS can put more trains on the tracks increasing its revenue and profit potential Compared with

trucks trains save energy and reduce carbon emissions We are also working to make Tellabs products

more energy-efficient as one of our commitments to corporate social responsibility see pages 1619

Huge energy savings can be realized By the year 2020 telecom and information technologies

could save $800 billion year in energy according to the GeSI Smart 2020 report

We are fortunate that Tellabs is well-positioned in global industry that remains vital Yet we clearly will face

challenging times as we implement our strategies am confident that we have the right customers the

right people and the right solutions to succeed in the years ahead

Sincerely

.c/LeL-

Robert Pullen

Chief Executive Officer and President

March 2009

TELLABS ANNUAL REPORT 2008



QA

Investors ask Whats ahead for Tellabs

CEO Robert Pullen answers investors frequently asked questions

Given the ongoing financial turmoil what is your outlook

Tellabs has made significant strides in areas we control such as operating expenses

What we cant control is service providers capital spending which many customers have stated

they are curtailing To address that concern our strategy pinpoints addressable markets that are grow

ing faster than overall capital spending mobile backhaul optical networking and business services

Were also adding resources outside North America where almost 80% of capital spending occurs

Whatever revenue 2009 brings our goals are to continue generating cash as well as operating income

How can your plans for growth in target markets succeed

We have carefully selected markets where Tellabs has successfully innovated and where we have

strong customer relationships For instance in mobile backhaul we were first to market with solution

that offers customers lower total cost of ownership as they migrate to 3G and 4G networks We

were able to anticipate our mobile customers needs because weve been working with them for

20 years to increase their revenue and lower their expenses Similarly we offer differentiated solutions

with quantifiable benefits in all our addressable markets That said we fully recognize that we need to

keep innovating every day to stay ahead

What is your strategy for growing the services business

Were focused on consulting services that help customers solve their business challenges During

2008 we provided professional services for about 200 projects around the world including network

optimization business case analysis and network performance enhancements Although professional

services are small portion of our services business today this revenue is growing substantially and

profitably Our professional services add value for customers and differentiate Tellabs from competitors

Tellabs has $1.15 billion in cash and equivalents How do you intend to use it Are you planning

merger or acquisition given some very attractive valuations

Thanks to the prudent decisions by our board of directors and leadership Tellabs is fortunate

to have solid balance sheet with cash cash equivalents and marketable securities and no debt

Customers prefer to do business with financially solid suppliers



We intend to grow Tellabs organically You might see us opportunistically purchase key technology

to gain timing advantage but we would pursue merger or acquisition only if it clearly adds value for

our customers and shareowners That said we have no imminent plans in this area

How will you continue to improve the gross profit margins of Tellabs products

Our gross margins improved percentage points to 38.2% during 2008 For instance weve

improved gross margins on the Tellabs 7100 system over the past two years Well continue to work

on gross margins by aggressively managing down product costs through value engineering simplifying

products with fewer components sourcing parts at lower costs reducing product complexity using

fewer suppliers and reducing our inventory items

Is your core business declining What effect will tough times have on core products

Since our core products Tellabs 1000 3000 5000 and 8100 series are later in their life cycles

theyll likely decline over time Our strategy is to pursue growth products and services in order to

counterbalance this anticipated decline

During tough times different customers will take different approaches As they tighten their belts

some will try to squeeze more out of existing assets which is good for our core products Others will

accelerate the adoption of new technologies to reduce their capital and operating expenses which is

good for our growth products

You recently added Dr Vikram Saksena chief technology officer CTO Rizwan Khan executive vice presi

dent of global marketing and Roger Heinz executive vice president of global sales and services to

Tellabs executive team Why

To successfully innovate for customers and gain competitive edge we have to detect technology

trends and market opportunities well before they unfold Thats why we need experienced top-level

executives who specifically focus on technology and on the marketplace These key roles look at our

business from the outside in taking longer-term global view of how best to position Tellabs for the

future We plan to innovate market and sell our way through the downturn so we can emerge even

stronger on the other side Our new executives complement strong existing leadership team

See page 62 for biographies of the Tellabs leadership team

TELLABS ANNUAL UT PORT LUOB
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Innovation puts our customers ahead

More th 300 EeHabs cog neern work every day to push technology Ii Tuits and tacK our custo ners

toughest chahenges One innov tioii at time we help our ustomers suc eed

When comes to inovatio one of relObs key adv3ntages is our size As medium izd

company we can innovate more iickly than the giant Aid our experienced engiree ing tearis lonp

standing customer elatio iship and rock ohd nan al ound Thon put us well ahead of star ups

Undur to lab sratcpy ocu our porttoi ni 2OflQ AIP rz nvpstir gpo nf niir RD

resources in

Optical ietworking produts uch is th follabs 7100 optical ansport systee ar

the lellabs 6300 inaked transoort system and

Carrier Ethernet aid ID prod Kto 0uch as tie lellabs 8600 managed edge systeti

tI Tellabs 8800 multiserv cc router and the iew lelObs /300 Ethernet series

rider our otrategy to innovate in growth in irkets we ire dc iiver rig
solut on th addr

customers roost cr tical needs mobile back iaul Of tical ii twork ig id buiness servicc
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MobUe backhaul innovations Three Tel labs

pioneers in synchronization for rnohHe

backhaul networks hold dozen patents

among them left to right Mikko Laulainen

Hekki Laamanen and Kenneth Hann in

Espoo Finland



MOBLE BACKHAUL

NNOVATONS TO LOWER CUSTOMERS TOTAL COSTS

As mobile devices become on-the-go personal

computers service providers strive to keep up

with growing demands on their networks Tellabs

Mobile Backhaul Solutions enable service

providers to handle the rapid growth in mobile

e-mail Internet and video traffic

more than two-thirds of mobile

subscribers already use
2009

Tellabs-powered networks

USER BENEFITS

New 3G mobile services such as faster

Internet video on demand interactive

gaming and mobile commerce

CUSTOMER BENEFITS

Migrates backhaul flexibly and profitably

2011
to lower-cost packet transport with carner

2010 class quality

Provides lower total cost of ownership

with savings
of 60% to 93% in the long-

term evolution of mobile networks

Provisions service up to five times faster

than competitors through the Tellabs 8000

network manager

Backed up by deep expertise to simplify

and expedite compex deployments

PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

Tellabs 3000 voice-quality enhancement system

Tellabs 6300 managed transport system

Tellabs 7300 metro Ethernet switching series

Tellabs 8000 network manager

Tellabs 8100 managed access system

Tel.labs 8600 managed edge system

Tellabs 8800 multiservice router series

Tellabs Global Services

CUSTOMER EXAMPLES

81 Celcom chunghwa Telecom Ericsson Orange

.Moldova NoNe Siemens Networks PLOT/Smart

Sprint Nextel Swisscom Mobile Teleco.m Ifalia

1-Mobile Hungary 1-Mobile USA lnc Vodacom

South Africa Vodafone Hungary Vodafone Ireland

Vodafone New Zealand Wind

We chose the Tellabs

solution because it brings

manageability flexibility

and scalability

George Nazi

Managing Diructcr

BT 21 ON Programme

By converging existing and new technologies onto one platform

Tellabs solutions help customers manage traffic cost-efficiently

Our solutions offer lower total cost of ownership Service

providers can save as much as 93% in the long-term evolution

of networks compared with alternative solutions

Tellabs Mobile Backhaul Solutions are in more than 150 networks

worldwide including nearly 100 networks with our newest

backhaul technology In Europe the Middle East and Africa
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FIdb ovtous optcaI networking

nclude software tlict enables customers to

easily alter ROADM reconfigurable optical

add/drop multiplexer networks Advanced

software automatically detects and reroutes

traffic as needed to keep service providers

ahead demand



OPTICAL NETWORKING

NNOVATWNS TO S.PEED SERVICE AND CUT COSTS

Service providers need more bandwidth in their networks to

deliver reliable video high-speed Internet mobile services and

business services Tellabs Optical Networking Solutions enable

our customers to address bandwidth needs support existing

services and gain seamless migration path to future networks

VVith Tellabs Optical Networking Solutions service providers can

save up to 65% in capital expenses 65% in power consumption

and 85% in operating expenses compared with previous

networks

Tellabs helps speed deployment so that time to market is weeks

faster and revenue flows sooner With our solutions delivering

additional bandwidth takes only hours Service providers can

deliver services cost-effectively in way that makes the most

sense for their users networks and businesses

2011

Faster downloads sharper video and

business services with the highest

availability and Quality of Service

CUSTOMER BENEFITS

Enables any service to scale up at

lower total cost of ownership

Provisions bandwidth remotely and

quickly when and where lbs needed

Co.mbines optical networking and

services layer on one platform to

reduce network elements and capital

expenses up to 65% vs previous networks

Reduces power consumption up to 65% vs

prewous networks

Reduces operating expenses up to 85% vs

previous networks

Backed up by deep expertise to simplify

and expedite complex deployments

PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

Tellabs 6300 managed tra nsporf system

Tellabs ioo optical transport system

Teliabs 7100 Nano ophcai transport system

Tellabs 7300 metro Ethernet switching series

Tellabs 8000 network manager

Teilabs Global Services

CUSTOMER EXAMPLES

Bharti Harris Stratex Lintasarta Power Grid

Corporation of India Lmited Puerto Rico

Telecom Company Verizon Vodacom South Africa

2009

0l0
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The will ingness of

Tellabs to listen to

network operators is

major strength
Andries Do port
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Business services innovations David Curry

in Santa Clara CallS is behind four Tellabs

innovations that bridge existing and net

generation business services
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We chose Tellabs because

we can offer seamless
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transition to users

With bandwklth demand growing and businesses

seekmg the highest Quabty of Service QoS
ervee oroviders nred rehable networks if at

dehver business services with highest

availab lity tehabs Br tines Services Solutions

ii cludmg our Carrier Fthernet and Multiservice Edge solutions

enable serve providrrs to grats fro ii existii to Eext

gencration networks wdhout disrupting users

By conversing multiple services onto singie platforri providers
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Doing whats right is good business

Sustainable actions make business sense le ab tak each apect ot crporate soci respons hty

CSRs sy
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areas such as ethics id corporate overm me page Durir 2009 we wh focus in
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Commilment

Environment

Help protect the

environment

Supply ChMn

Expect exce//ence

throughout our

supply chain

Employees

Engage and develo

talented people

Community

Give hack to the

cotrimun ities where

we live and work

Ethics Governance

Meet highest stam

dards for ethics and

governance

2008 Progress

Completed and disclosed first Carbon

Disclosure Project survey /CDPS for North

American locations

Tellabs Finland achieved Green Office certif

cation from the World Wildlife Fund WWF

Adopted Electronic Industry Citizenship

Coalition EICC Code of Conduct

Shared EICC code with supplier base and

Formalize guidance on political and charitable

contributions

Update antLcorruption policy

TELLABS CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY AT GLANCE

2009 Plans

Complete the Carbon Disclosure Project CDP7

survey reporting on all locations

Initiate work to determine carbon footprint

by product

Continue testing reliability of leaddree products

each all supoliers with our code of conduct

expectations

Incorporate corporate responsibility expectations

requested acknowledgement in all new and renewed supplier contracts

Maintained excellent health and safety record Conduct employee engagement survey

Recognized by lOGs Cornputerworld as one of Update employee data privacy policy

best plmmes to work in lT Expand manager effectiveness health and

wellness initiatives globally

Tellabs Foundation gave almost $1 million Distribute $1 million in ldllabs Foundation

Half of our people pledged through employee grants

giving programs including global campaign Maintain high participation in employee

to relieve hunger Tellabs matched giving programs

contributions onedo-one

Adopted majority voting

Nominating and Gove.rnance Committee

assumed oversight of corporate responsibility



Service providers spend about 80% of energy costs on network equipment Tellabs

helps reduce energy expenses through energy-efficient products

In the Tellabs 5500 system new high-density shelf uses 80% less
energy per

00-3 and 00-12 port The result one of our large customers can cut energy bills

by $1 million year

The Tellabs 7100 system combines previously separate network devices into

single platform The result one customer cut power consumption by 65%
compared with the previous network

Whats needed next are uniform industry standards for measuring power consumption

of network eqwpment Were workmg with the Alliance for Telecommunications

Industry Solutions ATIS to set such standards Through collaboration with suppliers

customers and others our industry can reduce power consumption benefit the envi

ronment by cuttmg greenhouse-gas emissions an.d save money

Green office Henrik Frisk Espoo

Onland manages program to

minftnize waste such as paper

cups Tehabs Hniand has received

Green Office certification from the

World Wildlife Fund
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dor ri nviron nt lly pon bI if turin ro

dd ng cu torn qu lu th nOr hI

cyl ourpro fromprdu inthrouhr ponhImnu
urin to in di th nd odu Ii

SAVING ENERGY AND MONEY



Hunger relief Tellabs employees left

to right Jeff Mallory and Mark Fritz

oin Jean Mallory and others as volun

teers at hunger relief organization

in Aurora III

Foundation

Gra1t5

Mat0ft
Gifts

540
1ellb5

gponsorsMP5

In 2008 Tellabs and the Tellabs

Foundation gave more than

$1.2 million to nonprofit oganizm

tions excluding employee gifts

and volunteerism
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Managements Discussion and Analysis

Introduction and Overview of Business

Tellabs designs develops and supports telecommunica

tions networking products We generate revenue principally

through the sale of these products as stand-alone network

elements and as elements of integrated solutions to

communications service providers worldwide We also

generate revenue by providing services to our customers

We operate in three business segments Broadband

Transport and Services

The Broadband segment includes access managed

access and data product portfolios that facilitate the

delivery of bundled consumer services wireline business

services and wireless communications We earn revenue

from the Broadband segment globally

Revenue from access products earned primarily in

North America is driven by consumer demand for

the triple-play of bundled voice video and high-

speed Internet/data services as traditional

telecommunications companies and cable service

operators compete to be the sole provider of these

services to consumers and businesses

Revenue from managed access products earned

primarily outside North America is driven by the

need to provide business-oriented voice video and

high-speed Internet/data services and wireless

communications

Revenue from data products earned globally is

driven by demand for wireless and wireline carriers

to deliver next-generation business services and

wireless services

The Transport segment includes digital cross-connect

systems optical networking systems and voice-quality

enhancement products These products enable service

providers to generate revenue from business services

manage bandwidth add network capacity when and

where it is needed and improve voice quality Revenue

from the Transport segment earned primarily in North

America is driven by the needs of service providers to

deliver wireless services business services and

consumer services

The Services segment includes deployment support

training professional consulting and systems integration

services for customers These services range from network

planning and installation to ongoing support Revenue

from the Services segment is earned globally Deployment

service revenue which makes up almost half of Services

revenue arises primarily from sales of transport products

in North America and tends to lag product sales by

approximately one fiscal quarter Professional service rev

enue which is earned primarily through network design

and consulting services is the fastest growing part of the

Services portfolio

Tellabs operates in dynamic industry Over the last

few years customer consolidation has reduced overall

industry capital spending which together with lack of

consolidation on the part of network equipment companies

has resulted in increased pricing pressure In addition

customer spending is pressured and competition is

heightened by the global economic situation

Within this backdrop we continue to transform the

company with new products and services The company is

evolving from business based primarily on the circuit-

switched Time Division Multiplexing TDM technology used

in our digital cross-connect and managed access products

to business based on the packet-switching and Internet

Protocol IP technology used in our optical networking

access and multiservice data products These new products

are taking root as service providers transform their networks

with next-generation capabilities Some of these products

carry gross profit margins lower and higher than the histori

cal average While we have significantly improved the

profitability
of these products over time the mix of prod

ucts in any given quarter can affect overall profitability

Throughout 2008 we announced series of actions

intended to sharpen our business focus and improve

profitability through reduced operating expenses and

improved gross margins On January 21 2008 we

committed to plan to bring operating expenses as well

as cost to produce products and deliver services in line

with current revenue and market conditions

On April 2008 we announced that we would discon

tinue one of our two gigabit passive optical network GPON

next-generation fiber access systems as management

determined that it would continue to hurt our overall

profitability
in future years Subsequently we announced

on April 2008 the discontinuation of our investment in

the Tellabs 8865 GPON optical line terminal OLT for

fiber access networks for which this carrier was the initial

targeted customer At that time we began to redirect

resources from this access activity to strengthen develop

ment efforts on next-generation data solutions for wireless

communications and marketing and sales internationally

Although access revenues declined in 2008 we have

strong embedded base of copper- and fiber-access

equipment in carrier networks Over the past few years

we have made significant investment in access products

including the Tellabs 1150 multiservice GPON product

On April 30 2008 we initiated plan to consolidate

several facilities as result of the discontinuation of the

Tellabs 8865 OLT and headcount reductions announced

in September 2007 and January 2008 On October 20

2008 we initiated restructuring plan that resizes

Tellabs business to reflect market conditions Restruc

turing actions included reducing future investment in

access products and freeing up resources to focus on

mobile backhaul optical networking and multiservice

data products and professional services These actions

together with those announced in September 2007

achieved the $100 million reduction target



Results of Operations

Net loss in 2008 was $930.1 million primarily as

result of non-cash goodwill impairment charge of

$988.3 million compared with net earnings of

$65.0 million in 2007 and $194.1 million in 2006
In 2008 revenue declined to $1729.0 million com

pared with $1913.4 million in 2007 and $2041.2 mil

lion in 2006 The decrease in 2008 from 2007 was

primarily due to reduced product revenue from the

Broadband and Transport segments partially offset by

higher revenue in the Services segment

In 2008 gross margin increased to 38.2% from

35.2% in 2007 Gross margins were 45.7% in 2006

Segment Revenue

The increase in 2008 from 2007 was primarily due to an

improved product and customer mix as well as the real

ization of product cost reductions

Operating expenses for 2008 increased to

$1630.1 million from $647.1 million in 2007 The

year-over-year increase in operating expenses was driven

by the $988.3 million goodwill impairment charge in

the third quarter of 2008 and restructuring and other

charges of $40.9 million during the year which offset

$40.4 million decrease in operating expenses primarily

from the $100 million cost-reduction program Operating

expenses for 2007 decreased by $39.7 million from

$686.8 million in 2006

2008 vs 2007 vs
in millions 2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Broadband $919.9 $1018.6 $1080.4 9.7% 5.7%
Transport 580.1 672.7 778.2 13.8% 13.6%
Services 229.0 222.1 182.6 3.1% 21.6%
Total revenue $1729.0 $1913.4 $2041.2 9.6% 6.3%

Geographic Revenue

lii millions 2008 2007 2006

North America $1168.6 68% $1413.5 74% $1548.4 76%
International 560.4 32% 499.9 26% 492.8 24%
Total revenue $1729.0 100% $1913.4 100% $2041.2 100%

Segment Revenue

Revenue from the Broadband segment in 2008 was

$919.9 million down $98.7 million from 2007 For

2008 lower revenue from the access and managed
access product portfolios was partially offset by growth

from data prod ucts Com paratively revenue decreased

$61.8 million in 2007 from 2006
Access product revenue decreased to $414.9 million

in 2008 from $566.8 million in 2007 Access revenue

was lower and will
likely continue to decrease as several

key customers are transitioning to alternative network

architectures In 2008 approximately 71% of access rev

enue came from fiber-based platforms with the balance

coming from copper-based platforms In 2007 access

revenue decreased to $566.8 million from $652.9 mil

lion in 2006 due to lower unit prices on our single-family

ONTs and lower revenue from fiber-to-the-curb and

copper-based access platforms The decrease in revenue

was partially offset by higher revenue from increased

ONT unit volume Revenue from fiber-based platforms

amounted to approximately 69% of total access revenue

in 2007 and 57% in 2006

Managed access revenue decreased to $289.9 million

in 2008 from $291.3 million in 2007 Increased revenue

from the Tellabs 6300 SDH transport was offset by lower

revenue from the Tellabs 8100 managed access system

In 2007 revenue decreased to $291.3 million from

$320.4 million in 2006 as higher revenue from the

Tellabs 8100 managed access system was offset by lower

revenue from the Tellabs 6300 SDH transport product

and the Tellabs 2300 cable telephony product which is

late in its life cycle

Revenue from data products has increased each year

since we introduced them in the second half of 2003 In

2008 revenue from these products increased 34.0% to

$215.1 million from $160.5 million in 2007 Revenue

increased from the continuing rollout of our next-genera

tion wireless backhaul solution in multiple geographic

regions In 2007 revenue from these products driven by

demand for wireless backhaul applications and next-gener

ation data products increased 49.9% to $160.5 million

from $107.1 million in 2006

Revenue from the Transport segment decreased to

$580.1 million in 2008 from $672.7 million in 2007
Lower revenue from digital cross-connect products was

partially offset by growth from the Tellabs 7100 OTS

and the Tellabs 3000 voice-quality enhancement VQE
solutions Transport revenue decreased in 2007 to

$672.7 million from $778.2 million in 2006 Shipments

to North American wireless customers accounted for

approximately 34% of all Transport revenue in 2008
compared with 40% in 2007 and 62% in 2006 We



shipped approximately 5.7 million T-1 equivalents on

the Tellabs 5500 system during 2008 compared with

6.4 million in 2007 and 10.1 million in 2006

Services revenue increased to $229.0 million in 2008

from $222.1 million in 2007 Increased revenue from

professional and support services offset lower deployment

services revenue In 2007 Services revenue increased

$39.5 million from 2006 as result of increased deploy

ment services revenue driven by the rollout of the

Tellabs 7100 OTS product as well as increased revenue

from professional and support services In 2006 for the

first time professional and support services together

accounted for more than 50% of total Services revenue

Gross Profit and Margin

In millions 2008 2007 2006

Gross
pof

it $660.1 $674.3 $933.6

Gross margin 38.2% 35.2% 45.7%

Product gross profit $588.0 $605.4 $871.6

Product margin 39.2% 35.8% 46.9%

Services gross profit
72.1 68.9 62.0

Services margin 31.5% 31.0% 34.0%

Gross Margin

Overall gross margin increased to 38.2% in 2008 com

pared with 35.2% in 2007 This increase was driven by

margin improvements on the Tellabs 1600 ONT and the

Tellabs 7100 OTS and higher levels of revenue from the

Tellabs 8600 and 8800 platforms offset by lower rev

enue from the Tellabs 5500 and 1000 platforms In

addition warranty expense declined due to lower rates of

return volume of shipments and repair costs In 2007

gross margin decreased 10.5 percentage points from

Operating Expenses

In millions

Research and development

Sales and marketing

General and administrative

45.7% in 2006 primarily as result of higher revenue

from lower-margin newer products and lower revenue from

established products that carry higher margins

Product Gross Margin

Product gross margin improved from 2007 to 2008

primarily due to improvements on the Tellabs 1600 ONT

and the Tellabs 7100 OTS and higher levels of revenue

from the Tel labs 8600 and 8800 platforms offset by

lower revenue from the Tellabs 5500 and 1000 platforms

Product gross margin declined from 2006 to 2007 prima

rily due to product mix shift with fewer Tellabs 5500

digital cross-connects and more Tellabs 7100 OTS and

1600 ONT products

Services Gross Margin

Services gross margin was up slightly in 2008 compared

with 2007 Growth in higher margin professional services

and support services revenue coupled with decline in

lower margin deployment services revenue was offset by

investments in our services business outside the United

States In 2007 services gross margin decreased from

2006 due to higher proportion of revenue from lower-

margin deployment services

Gross Margin Trend

Gross margin is different for each product and services cat

egory and for each product within category because the

actual margin depends on the specific system configura

tions sold as well as customer and geographic pricing dif

ferences Over the past few years this variability which

tends to affect our gross margin is likely to continue

Operating expenses in 2008 increased by $983.0 million

to $1630.1 million compared with 2007 goodwill impair

ment charge of $988.3 million in the third quarter and

restructuring and other charges of $40.9 million in 2008

more than offset savings from the $100 million cost-reduc

tion program General and administrative expenses in 2008

included increased legal expenses as result of current

lawsuits Operating expenses decreased in 2007 from 2006

primarily from lower incentive compensation expenses as

compared with the
prior year

Intangible Asset Amortization

Intangible asset amortization increased slightly in 2008

from 2007 as we reduced the estimated useful lives of

some of our developed technology and customer relation

ships due to revised sales projections related to access

2008

$305.2

170.0

101.8

Expense

2007

$343.1

176.6

99.1

2006

$356.9

179.8

113.5

2008

17.7%

9.8%

5.9%

33.4%
Subtotal 577.0 618.8 650.2

Intangible asset amortization 23.9 22.5 28.6

Restructuring and other charges 40.9 5.8 8.0

Goodwill impairment
988.3

Total operating expenses $1630.1 $647.1 $686.8

Percent of Revenue

2007

17.9%

9.2%

5.2%

32.3%

2006

17.5%

8.8%

5.6%

1.9%



products and customers In addition we took charge of

$0.6 million for impaired developed technology related to

the Tellabs 1100 access platform due to reduced

demand Amortization decreased in 2007 from 2006 as

certain intangibles reached full amortization

Restructuring and Other Charges

In 2008 restructuring and other charges consisted prima

rily of severance facility- and asset-related charges and

charges for the consolidation of several facilities that con

tribute to cost reductions for the $100 million program In

2007 we consolidated research and development into

fewer locations and shifted them to lower-cost environ

ments In 2006 we consolidated two order configuration

and distribution centers into single location and had

related workforce reduction

Goodwill Impairment

In the third quarter of 2008 we performed an interim

review on all three operating segments because our market

capitalization was less than book value for sustained

period and we continued to face challenging market condi

tions As result of our interim review we recorded

goodwill impairment charge of $988.3 million of which

$594.2 million related to the Broadband segment and

$394.1 million related to the Transport segment com
pletely eliminating their goodwill balances The Services

segment did not incur an impairment of its goodwill

because the fair value of the segment was determined to

be greater than the carrying value

Segment Profit

in millions 2008 2007 2006

Broadband $115.7 39.1 $120.4

Transport 178.0 237.5 414.5

Services 75.5 72.2 65.7

Total segment profit $369.2 $348.8 $600.6

We define segment profit as gross prof it less research aed development eopenses

Segment profit excludes sales and marketing expenses general arid administrative

enpenses the amortization of
intangibles restructuring and other charges the impact

of equity-based compensation which contains restricted stock and performance

stock units granted atter June 30 2006 and stock options and the goodwill

impairment charge

Broadband segment profit for 2008 was $115.7 million

an increase of $76.6 million from $39.1 million in 2007
The increase in segment profit was driven by margin

improvements associated with the Tellabs 1600 ONT
higher revenue from data products and reduced research

and development expenses Broadband segment profit

decreased $81.3 million in 2007 from 2006 primarily

as higher revenue from the Tellabs 1600 ONT and lower

revenue from access products sold into existing copper-

based networks was partially offset by an increase in rev

enue from data products

Transport segment profit for 2008 was $178.0 million

down from $237.5 million in 2007 Transport segment

profit decreased $177.0 million in 2007 from 2006
The decrease in both periods was due to lower segment

revenue from digital cross-connects which more than

offset higher revenue and margin improvements on the

Tellabs 7100 OTS

Services segment profit was $75.5 million in 2008
up $3.3 million from $72.2 million in 2007 The

increase in segment profit came from increased revenue

from higher-margin professional and support services par

tially offset by lower margin from deployment services

Services segment profit increased $6.5 million in 2007

from 2006 due to higher revenue and an increase in

higher-margin support services

Other Income

in millions 2008 2007 2006

Interest income net 34.8 $50.9 $45.7

Other expense net 17.3 7.9 7.8
Total other income 17.5 $43.0 $37.9

Interest income net decreased in 2008 compared with

2007 To preserve capital we repositioned our investment

portfolio which now primarily contains government FDIC

guaranteed GNMA-guaranteed foreign government guar

anteed government-agency and corporate bonds and

notes As result of this repositioning the current interest

rate environment and lower invested balances we earned

less interest income in 2008 compared with 2007 and

2006 Other expense net includes charges to write-down

long-term equity investments in partnerships and start-up

technology companies These charges were $9.9 million in

2008 $0.5 million in 2007 and $7.0 million in 2006 In

addition we had charges of $0.8 million in 2008 and

$5.2 million in 2007 for other-than-temporary impair

ments from investments in marketable securities

Income Taxes

In millions 2008 2007 2006

Income tax benefit

expense $22.4 $5.2 $9O.6
Effective tax rate 2.4% 7.4% 1.8%



We recorded an income tax benefit of $22.4 million in

2008 compared with income tax expense of $5.2 million

in 2007 The tax benefit reflects tax provision on income

from foreign operations offset by partial benefit on the

loss from domestic operations and $34.8 million tax ben

efit which we recorded in the second quarter of 2008
related to the resolution of domestic federal income tax

audits for the period 2001 through 2005 The tax benefit

on our domestic operations was limited due to the valua

tion allowance established against our domestic deferred

tax assets For more detailed discusion of the valuation

allowance established against our domestic deferred tax

assets see Footnote 11 Income Taxes The reduction in

our tax expense in 2007 is attributable primarily to

decrease in income earned from domestic operations

Financial Condition Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal source of liquidity remained our cash cash

equivalents and marketable securities of $1152.1 million

as of the end of 2008 which decreased by $66.4 million

since year-end 2007 The decrease in cash cash equiva

lents and marketable securities for the year reflects cash

used to repurchase our common stock and cash used for

capital expenditures partially offset by cash generated

from operating activities In 2008 we generated

$130.8 million of cash from operating activities com

pared with $133.4 million in 2007 and $320.1 million

in 2006

During the last half of 2008 we actively balanced

our investment portfolio with the goal of capital

preservation At January 2009 government FDIC

guaranteed GN MA-guaranteed foreign government

Contractual Obligations

guaranteed or government-agency bonds and notes

were approximately 95% of the portfolio Substantially

all of our investments are highly liquid instruments

We may rebalance our portfolio from time to time

which may affect the duration credit structure and

future income of our investments

In 2008 we repurchased 24.5 million shares of our

common stock at cost of $153.7 million We may

repurchase shares under the authorized open market

program periodically during open trading windows

when we do not have material non-public information

We provide no assurance that we will continue our

repurchase activity and we may change our repurchase

activity in the future We cannot estimate the timing of

any such change or the impact on our cash cash

equivalents and marketable securities

Based on historical performance and current fore

casts we believe the companys cash cash equivalents

and marketable securities will satisfy working capital

needs capital expenditures and other liquidity require

ments related to existing operations for the next 12

months Future available sources of working capital

including cash cash equivalents and marketable

securities cash generated from future operations

short-term or long-term financing equity offerings or

any combination of these sources should allow us to

meet our long-term liquidity needs Our current policy

is to use our liquidity financial strength and stability

to fund business operations to expand business

potentially through acquisitions or to repurchase our

common stock

In millions Total

Operating lease obligations 30.1

Operating lease obligations related to

restructuring activities net 31.2 9.6 12.1 6.4 3.1

Purchase commitments to contract

manufacturers and suppliers 194.8 194.8

Income taxes 1.0 1.0

Stock loan 179.1 179.1

Stock loan borrowing fees2 7.1 1.5 2.5 2.5 0.6

Total contractual obligations $443.3 $395.4 $24.7 $15.8 $7.4

Our agreement with the lender of the stock has no defined date when we must repay the loan however the loan is callable at the discretion of the lender

Our investment in Cisco stock is maintained at value equal to or greater
than the market value of the loaned securities

For purposes of contractual obligations disclosure we used Ciscos average share price of $17.30 for the quarter ended January 2009 to determine the

hypothetical value of the borrowing fees assuming the loans are settled in 2014

The following table sets forth an overview of contractual obligations as of January 2009 that will affect our liquidity

and cash flows in future periods

Payments Due by Period

Less than

Year

9.4

13

Years

$10.1

35
Years

6.9

More than

Years

$3.7

ELLARS ANN UAL 555051 2005



We use several contract manufacturers and suppliers

who provide manufacturing services for our products During

the normal course of business we enter into agreements

with certain contract manufacturers and suppliers that

enable them to procure inventory based on criteria defined

by us to reduce manufacturing lead times and ensure

adequate component supply Under these agreements

the maximum liability for purchase commitments as of

January 2009 was $194.8 million of which

$14.8 million was recorded on the balance sheet

The stock loan borrowing fees that are recorded in the

financial statements each period are affected by Ciscos

average share price at the end of each quarter

As of January 2009 we had unrecognized tax posi

tions of $1.0 million included in short-term income tax

liabilities and $37.4 million included in long-term income

tax liabilities At this time we are unable to make reason

able estimate of the timing of payments in individual years

beyond 12 months due to uncertainties in the timing of

tax audit outcomes

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

None

Critical Accounting Estimates

The methods estimates and judgments that we use in

applying our accounting policies can have significant

impact on the results we report in the consolidated finan

cial statements Some of these estimates require difficult

and subjective judgments often as result of the need to

estimate matters that are inherently uncertain For the

reasons discussed below we consider our critical

accounting estimates to be revenue recognition the

allowance for excess and obsolete inventory and excess

purchase commitments collectively E0 goodwill valua

tion the valuation of amortizable intangible assets the

estimate of the warranty liability reserve requirements for

lease obligations on vacated facilities income taxes and

equity-based compensation

We have discussed the development and selection of

these critical accounting policies and estimates with the

Audit and Ethics Committee of Tellabs Board of Directors

Revenue Recognition

Determining the proper revenue recognition in our financial

statements requires us to make judgments about the

application of the accounting rules based on the facts

and circumstances of each customer arrangement

When customer arrangement involves multiple deliver

ables we evaluate all deliverables to determine whether

they represent separate units of accounting This approach

involves determination about

whether the delivered item has value to the customer

on stand-alone basis

whether there is objective and reliable evidence of the

whether delivery or performance of the undelivered

item is considered probable and is substantially in our

control where an arrangement contains general right

of return relative to the delivered item

The determination of whether software is more than inci

dental can impact whether revenue is recognized under soft

ware revenue recognition guidance or under general revenue

recognition guidance This assessment could impact the

amount and timing of revenue recognition

Many of our contracts contain customer acceptance pro

visions In cases involving sales of new products for exam

ple we defer revenue until we receive formal customer

acceptance In cases where we can demonstrate that the

product or service has met all acceptance criteria prior to

formal customer acceptance or where we have sufficient

historical evidence of customer acceptance we consider

acceptance to be perfunctory and therefore formal customer

acceptance is not required Our judgment about whether

acceptance is perfunctory can impact the timing of revenue

for contracts containing acceptance provisions

Excess Obsolete Inventory and

Excess Purchase Commitments

We determine inventory cost using the first-in first-out

method and we value inventory at the lower of cost or mar

ket with market determined by reference to current replace

ment cost or net realizable selling price We determine the

amount of inventory that is excess and obsolete EO and

purchase commitments in excess of requirements using

estimates of future demand for individual components of

raw materials and finished goods

To determine EO we compare listings of existing piece

parts and finished goods to future product demand and

usage requirements We record full valuation allowance for

inventory quantities on hand in excess of two years

expected usage For inventory quantities that fall between

one and two years demand we use managements judg

ment to determine the appropriate EO amount We do not

record an allowance if the quantity is less than one years

forecasted demand

We believe our accounting estimate related to EO is

critical accounting estimate because it requires us to make

assumptions about sales volumes and product mix which

can be highly uncertain Changes in these estimates can

have material effect on our financial statements

Goodwill

We currently have goodwill in the Services segment

Goodwill impairment is reviewed annually and when impair

ment indicators exist by comparing the segments net book

value to fair value in accordance with SFAS 142 Goodwill

and Other Intangible Assets If the segments fair value is

greater than its net book value then further impairment

tests are not deemed necessary If the segments fair value

is less than its net book value further tests are performed to

determine the segments implied fair value of goodwill Thefair value of the undelivered item and



implied fair value is then compared against the book value We believe that the accounting estimate related to

of goodwill to determine the level of impairment

The process of evaluating the potential impairment of

goodwill is subjective because it requires the use of esti

mates and assumptions We use the discounted cash flow

method to estimate the fair value of the operating segment

In estimating the fair value of the segment for the purpose

of this analysis we made estimates and judgments about

the future cash flows of the segment Although we base our

cash flow forecasts on assumptions that are consistent with

plans and estimates we use to manage the underlying seg

ment there is significant judgment in determining the cash

flows attributable to the segment

We believe the accounting estimate related to the

valuation of goodwill is critical accounting estimate

because it requires us to make assumptions that are highly

uncertain about the future cash flows of our segments

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist primarily of purchased technology

which arose primarily from acquisitions of businesses in

2004 and 2003

We evaluate the carrying value of intangible assets for

impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist

Accounting standards require that if the sum of the future

cash flows expected to result from long-term asset is less

than the reported value of the asset an impairment charge

must be recognized in the financial statements The amount

of impairment is calculated by subtracting the fair value of

the asset from the reported carrying value of the asset

We believe the accounting estimate related to valuation

of intangible assets is critical accounting estimate

because it requires us to make assumptions about future

sales prices and volumes for products that involve new tech

nologies and applications where customer acceptance of

new products or timely introduction of new technologies into

their networks are uncertain The recognition of an impair

ment could be material to our financial statements

Warranty Costs

We provide warranties for all of our products with terms

and conditions that vary depending on the product sold We

provide basic limited warranty including parts and labor

for all products other than access products for periods that

range from 90 days to five years The basic limited warranty

for access products covers parts and labor for periods that

generally range from two to six years We record warranty

expense in cost of revenue on the consolidated statement

of operations We estimate warranty liability by applying

historical warranty return rates and costs per claim to the

number of units shipped that are still within their warranty

period In addition when we judge that particular warranty

claim will involve costs that are out of the ordinary we

separately estimate the costs for that claim and record the

amount as an additional warranty expense for the period in

which we determine we have liability

warranty costs is critical accounting estimate because it

requires us to make assumptions about matters that are

highly uncertain including future rates of product failure

repair costs including availability of materials shipping

and handling and de-installation and re-installation costs at

our customers sites among others Consequently the

changes in our warranty reserves could be material to our

financial statements

Restructuring Reserves Leases

Restructuring reserves consist of amounts we owe on leases

for facilities we vacated reduced by an estimate of sublease

rental income We determined the amount of the reserve for

each facility by estimating the amount of time it will be

vacant before it is sublet and the terms of the sublease

agreement compared with our obligation then reducing it

by an estimate of potential sublease income We examine

real estate market conditions in each location where we

have vacated facility

We believe our accounting estimate of restructuring

lease obligations is critical accounting estimate because

it requires us to make assumptions about real estate rental

markets and conditions that are highly uncertain and

changes in our estimates could have material impact on

our financial statements

Income Taxes

We conduct business and file income tax returns in

numerous tax jurisdictions around the world This requires

us to interpret tax laws that are often vague and uncer

tain and to make judgments about the application of

those laws when we prepare our tax returns When we cal

culate income tax expense and the related tax liabilities

and assets for our consolidated financial statements we

use estimates of the amount of income deductions and

credits that we believe are allowable under local tax laws

and that should be allowed by tax authorities if our tax

returns are audited However tax authorities may disagree

on the amounts of income deductions and credits that

are allowed to be included in those tax returns This

could result in paying additional taxes or receiving

refund of previously paid taxes

Because we are large multi-national corporation the

United States Internal Revenue Service IRS generally

audits each of our federal income tax returns During

2008 we reached settlement with the IRS in connec

tion with their examination of all tax years prior to 2006

Of our major jurisdictions we are currently under audit by

the State of California for the 2004 through 2006 tax

periods We do not expect the outcome of tax examina

tions to have material effect on our consolidated results

of operations consolidated financial position or cash flow

Valuation Allowance for Deferred Thx Assets

Deferred tax assets arise when we recognize charges or

expenses in our financial statements that will not be



allowed as income tax deductions until future periods The

term deferred tax asset also includes unused tax net oper

ating losses and tax credits that we are allowed to carry for

ward to future years Accounting rules permit us to carry

deferred tax assets on the balance sheet at full value as

long as it is more likely than not the deductions losses

or credits will be used in the future valuation allowance

must be recorded against deferred tax asset if this test

cannot be met The accounting rules state that company

with recent history of losses would have difficult per

haps impossible time supporting position that utilization

of its deferred tax assets was more likely than not to occur

We believe that the loss incurred by the Company in

the current year and the cumulative loss incurred in the

current and prior two years represent sufficient negative

evidence to determine that the establishment of valuation

allowance against domestic deferred tax assets is appropri

ate Until an appropriate level of profitability is attained

we expect to continue to maintain valuation allowance

on our net deferred tax assets related to future U.S and

certain non-U.S tax benefits

Equity-8ased Compensation

We account for equity-based compensation in accordance

with SEAS No 123R Share-Based Payment Under the

fair value recognition provisions of this statement we

measure equity-based compensation cost at the grant

date based on the value of the award which is recognized

as expense over the vesting period Determining the fair

value of equity-based awards at the grant date requires

several assumptions and change in these assumptions

could materially impact our equity-based compensation

expense and our results of operations These assumptions

include our stocks expected volatility the risk-free inter

est rate expected option term and expected dividend

yield In addition we estimate the amount of equity-

based awards that are expected to be forfeited

Strategy and Outlook

Tellabs operates in an industry characterized by excitement

change and uncertainty

In the wireline sector telecom service providers face sig

nificant competitive threats to their most profitable residen

tial services from cable TV providers in North America and

globally from the substitution of mobile services In an effort

to stem line loss and declining voice revenues carriers have

undertaken ambitious and expensive programs to transform

their wireline networks with fiber-optic technology to deliver

bundle of voice data and video services that is competi

tive with or superior to that offered by competitors Wireline

carriers and cable TV service providers have also introduced

next-generation data technology to deliver new business-

oriented voice video and data/Internet services to their

corporate customers

Over the past few years wireless carriers also under

competitive pressure have aggressively invested in network

infrastructure to deliver new data-oriented services Many of

these carriers have consolidated in recent years to achieve

the advantages of scale needed to sustain such major net

work build outs The remaining large carriers have gained

increased pricing power over equipment suppliers such as

Tellabs This consolidation has had an adverse effect on

overall capital spending by carriers

Some equipment suppliers have consolidated in recent

years to achieve the scale advantages needed to better

address their consolidated customer base Heightened

competition by these suppliers has resulted in lower profits

for Tellabs and some of its direct competitors

Moreover in international markets the presence of Asian

equipment suppliers challenges our short-term
ability

to

grow Asian equipment suppliers have significantly lower

cost structures than companies such as Tellabs particularly

for research and development

We are presented with challenging economic

environment amidst the ongoing global financial crisis

Expectations for capital spending levels by our customers in

2009 vary and generally speaking we expect overall global

capital spending to modestly decline this year with greater

declines in North America than the rest of the world where

revenue will
likely

be affected by the uncertainties associ

ated with foreign currency fluctuations We cannot predict

how macroeconomic issues will continue to affect capital

spending by our customers in 2009 While the economic

environment may be challenging we believe we are invested

in the right solutions for growing markets

Over the past few years Tellabs has shifted its product

offerings to address the strategic needs of both wireline

and wireless carriers Building on base of successful

established products we have deployed the fiber-access and

ROADM technologies needed for the delivery of combined

voice data and video services to residential customers

Our data products address the changing nature of wireless

services and enterprise computing on global basis

Late in 2008 we articulated three-part strategy for the

company Under this strategy we will

Focus our development activities on the fastest

growing parts of our product and service portfolio our

Dynamic Optical and Carrier Ethernet IP products

and Professional Services

Innovate in growth markets where we have incumbent

positions and our fastest-growing products are gaining

traction Mobile Backhaul Optical Networking and

Business Services

Pursue flawless execution as we work to improve

quality reduce costs and meet commitments



We expect that executing this strategy of freeing up and

redirecting resources to create innovative products and

services that help customers succeed will further improve

financial performance and fund growth initiatives

Early in 2009 we initiated restructuring plan as we

continue to align our costs with customer spending and cur

rent market conditions We expect to record pretax charges

in the first quarter of 2009 in the range of $2 million to

$3 million for workforce reductions Estimated cash pay
ments under this plan are also expected to be in the range

of $2 million to $3 million beginning in the first quarter of

2009 and continuing into the first quarter of 2010

Since 2005 we have actively returned capital to

stockholders through stock buybacks In 2009 we will

continue to evaluate how to best use our balance sheet to

increase stockholder value

Forward-Looking Statements

Except for historical information the matters discussed

or incorporated by reference into this report including

the Managements Discussion and Analysis may include

forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe

harbor provisions of Section 27A of the Securities Act of

1933 as amended and Section 21E of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended These statements

reflect managements expectations estimates and

assumptions based on current and available information

at the time the document was prepared These forward-

looking statements include but are not limited to

statements regarding future events plans goals

objectives and expectations The words anticipate

believe estimate target expect predict

plan possible project intend likely will
should could may foreseeable would and

similar expressions are intended to identify forward-

looking statements Forward-looking statements are not

guarantees of future performance and involve risks

uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual

performance or achievements to be materially different

from any future results performance or achievements

expressed or implied by those statements Important

factors that could cause our actual results to differ

materially from those in forward-looking statements

include but are not limited to overall negative economic

conditions generally and disruptions in credit and capital

markets including specific impacts of these conditions

on the telecommunications industry financial condition

of telecommunications service providers equipment

vendors and contract manufacturers including any

impact of bankruptcies the impact of customer and

vendor consolidation new product acceptance product

demand and industry capacity competitive products and

pricing competitive pressures from new entrants to the

telecommunications industry initiatives to improve

profitability that may have financial consequences

including further restructuring charges and the ability to

realize anticipated savings under such cost-reduction

initiatives exiting businesses and product areas impair

ment charges and other cost cutting initiatives and

related charges and costs manufacturing efficiencies

research and new product development protection of and

access to intellectual property patents and technology

ability to attract and retain highly qualified personnel

availability of components and critical manufacturing

equipment and capacity foreign economic conditions

including currency rate fluctuations the regulatory and

trade environment the impact of new or revised account

ing rules or interpretations including revenue recognition

requirements availability and terms of future acquisi

tions divestitures and investments uncertainties relating

to synergies charges and expenses associated with

business combinations and other transactions and other

risks and future factors that may be detailed from time to

time in the Companys filings with the SEC For further

description of such risks and future factors see Item 1A

of our most recently filed Form 10-K Our actual future

results could differ materially from those predicted in

such forward-looking statements In light of the foregoing

risks uncertainties and other factors investors are

advised not to rely on these forward-looking statements

when making investment decisions These factors are not

intended to be an all-encompassing list of risks and

uncertainties that may affect the operations perfor

mance development and results of our business We

undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any

forward-looking statements to reflect changed assump

tions the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated

events or changes to future results over time The fore

going discussion should be read in conjunction with the

financial statements and related notes and Managements

Discussion and Analysis in this 2008 Annual Report
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Managements Report on Internal Control

over Financial Reporting

The management of Tellabs Inc and subsidiaries the

Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining

adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term

is defined in Rules 13a-15f of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 as amended Under the supervision and with the

participation of our management including our principal

executive officer and principal
financial officer we conducted an

evaluation of the effectiveness of the Companys internal control

over financial reporting as of January 2009 as required by

Rule 13a-15c of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended In making this assessment we used the criteria

set forth in the framework in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission Based on our evaluation under the

framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework our

management concluded that our internal control over financial

reporting was effective as of January 2009

aDYl /LEv
Robert Pullen

President and

Chief Executive Officer

Timothy Wiggins

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

February 26 2009

Report of Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Tellabs Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

of Tellabs Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of January

2009 and December 28 2007 and the related consolidated

statements of operations stockholders equity and cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended January 2009

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of

the Companys management Our responsibility
is to express an

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state

ments are free of material misstatement An audit includes exam

ining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti

mates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred

to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of the Company at January 2009 and

December 28 2007 and the consolidated results of its opera

tions and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended January 2009 in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles

As discussed in Note 11 in 2007 the Company changed its

method of accounting for uncertain tax positions in connection

with the required adoption of FASB Interpretation No 48 As

discussed in Note ito the consolidated financial statements in

2006 the Company changed its method of accounting for share-

based payments in connection with the required adoption of

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123R
We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the

Companys internal control over financial reporting as of January

2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 26

2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Ernst Young LLP

Chicago Illinois

February 26 2009



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Tellabs Inc

We have audited Tellabs Inc and subsidiaries the Company
internal control over financial reporting as of January 2009

based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria The Companys

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal con

trol over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effec

tiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in

the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over

Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all

material respects Our audit included obtaining an understand

ing of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk

that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on

the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our

audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reason

able detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dis

positions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expendi

tures of the company are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of management and directors of the company

and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition

of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over

financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future

periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inade

quate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material

respects effective internal control over financial reporting as

of January 2009 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards

of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of

January 2009 and December 28 2007 and the related con

solidated statements of operations stockholders equity and

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

January 2009 and our report dated February 26 2009

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

w.iLL
Ernst Young LLP

Chicago Illinois

February 26 2009
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

In millions except per-share data 1/2/09 12/28/07 12/29/06

Revenue

Products $1500.0 $1691.3 $1858.6

Services 229.0 222.1 182.6

Total revenue 1729.0 1913.4 2041.2

Cost of Revenue

Products 912.0 1085.9 987.0

Services 156.9 153.2 120.6

Total cost of revenue 1068.9 1239.1 1107.6

Gross Profit 660.1 674.3 933.6

Operating Expenses

Research and development 305.2 343.1 356.9

Sales and marketing 170.0 176.6 179.8

General and administrative 101.8 99.1 113.5

Intangible asset amortization 23.9 22.5 28.6

Restructuring and other charges 40.9 5.8 8.0

Goodwill impairment 988.3

Total operating expenses 1630.1 647.1 686.8

Operating Loss Earnings 970.0 27.2 246.8

Other Income

Interest income net 34.8 50.9 45.7

Other expense net 17.3 7.9 7.8

Total other income 17.5 43.0 37.9

Loss Earnings Before Income Tax 952.5 70.2 284.7

Income tax benefit expense 22.4 5.2 90.6

Net Loss Earnings 930.1 65.0 194.1

Net Loss Earnings Per Share

Basic 2.32 0.15 0.44

Diluted 2.32 0.15 0.43

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

Basic 400.1 436.6 445.9

Diluted 400.1 441.1 454.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

In millions except share data 112109 12/28/07

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 376.1 213.0

Investments in marketable securities 776.0 1005.5

Total cash cash equivalents and marketable securities 1152.1 1218.5

Other marketable securities 179.1 291.0

Accounts receivable net of allowances of $1.4 and $3.0 332.7 363.8

Inventories

Raw materials 34.2 35.3

Work in process
13.9 11.7

Finished goods
128.8 124.2

Total inventories 176.9 171.2

Income taxes 38.7 10.6

Miscellaneous receivables and other current assets 56.3 56.6

Total Current Assets 1935.8 2111.7

Property Plant and Equipment

Land 21.1 21.2

Buildings and improvements
201.6 209.6

Equipment
420.0 439.3

Total property plant and equipment
642.7 670.1

Accumulated depreciation 364.4 367.7

Property plant and equipment net 278.3 302.4

Goodwill 122.4 1110.5

Intangible Assets Net of Amortization 442 67.0

Other Assets 127.5 155.0

Total Assets $2508.2 $3746.6

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable
84.1 91.3

Accrued compensation
60.7 49.1

Restructuring and other charges 17.7 10.8

Income taxes 73.0 83.8

Stock loan 179.1 291.0

Deferred revenue 34.6 30.0

Other accrued liabilities 91.4 117.0

Total Current Liabilities 540.6 673.0

Long-Term Restructuring Liabilities 13.3 14.4

Income Taxes 59.7 78.9

Other Long-Term Liabilities 48.1 67.0

Stockholders Equity

Preferred stock authorized 5000000 shares of $0.01 par value

no shares issued and outstanding

Common stock authorized 1000000000 shares of $0.01 par value

495757314 and 493900528 shares issued 5.0 4.9

Additional paid-in capital 1485.9 1459.5

Treasury stock at cost 100088341 and 75177591 shares 952.4 796.7

Retained earnings 1183.2 2113.3

Accumulated other comprehensive income 124.8 132.3

Total Stockholders Equity 1846.5 2913.3

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity $2508.2 $3746.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

In millions

Common Stock

Balance at beginning of year

Stock issued for employee

stock programs

Balance at end of year

Additional Paid-In Capital

Balance at beginning of year

Reclassification from

deferred compensation 10.9
Restricted stock award activity 7.5

Stock option activity 148.2

Stock purchase plan activity 6.9

Performance stock units 0.8

Deferred compensation related

to acquisitions

Deferred Compensation

Balance at beginning of year

Reclassification to additional

paid-in capital

Balance at end of year

Treasury Stock

Balance at beginning of year 75.2 796.7 49.9 598.7 27.7 322.8
Purchases 24.9 155.7 25.3 198.0 22.2 275.9

Balance at end of year 100.1 952.4 75.2 796.7 49.9 598.7

Retained Earnings

Balance at beginning of year 2113.3 2042.0 1847.9
Provisions of FIN 48 adjustment

to beginning retained earnings 6.3

Net loss earnings 65.0

Balance at end of year 2113.3

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at beginning of year 132.3 94.8

Reclassification adjustment for gain

included in net earnings net of tax 2.2 2.5
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale

securities net of tax 2.9 3.0

Unrealized gain loss on cash

flow hedges net of tax 2.9 0.2
Unrealized gain on net investment hedges 10.3

Foreign currency translation adjustments 23.0 34.9

SFAS 158 net of tax 1.6 2.3

Balance at end of year 124.8 132.3

Total Stockholders Equity $1846.5 2913.3

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

1/29 12/28/07 12/29/06

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

493.9 4.9 489.0 4.9 477.0 4.8

1.9 0.1 4.9 12.0 0.1

495.8 5.0 493.9 4.9 489.0 4.9

1459.5 1395.3 1238.7

15.3 10.2

11.0 50.4

3.9

0.1 0.3

1485.9 1459.5Balance at end of year

4.1

1395.3

10.9

10.9

930.1

1183.2

194.1

2042.0

57.0

0.5

5.6

0.3

33.6

1.2

94.8

2938.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

In millions
1/29 12/28/07 12/29/06

Operating Activities

Net loss earnings 930.1 65.0 194.1

Adjustments to reconcile net loss earnings to

net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 87.4 90.7 103.5

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 9.5 2.0 2.3

Goodwill impairment 988.3

Equity-based compensation 26.4 32.1 52.2

Deferred income taxes 34.6 2.7 39.4

Excess tax benefits from equity-based compensation 0.1 2.1 15.3

Restructuring and other charges 40.9 5.8 8.0

Other-than-temporary impairment charges on investments 10.7 5.7 7.0

Net changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 16.2 68.4 81.9

Inventories 15.0 3.7 52.7

Miscellaneous receivables and other current assets 18.1 2.5 9.1

Other assets 12.3 14.9 0.2

Accounts payable
1.3 40.0 21.4

Restructuring and other charges 35.1 10.7 9.8

Deferred revenue 4.6 25.4 46.1

Other accrued liabilities 13.0 32.2 10.6

Income taxes 11.5 29.3 8.7

Other long-term liabilities 9.3 15.0 16.2

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 130.8 133.4 320.1

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures 50.1 57.7 67.2

Proceeds on disposals of property plant and equipment 0.3 0.1 0.8

Payments for purchases of investments 1661.7 1240.4 1654.4

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 1898.9 1380.9 822.1

Net Cash Provided by Used for Investing Activities 185.4 82.9 898.7

Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of common stock under stock plans 0.8 31.4 99.6

Repurchase of common stock 155.7 198.0 275.9

Excess tax benefits from equity-based compensation 0.1 2.1 15.3

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities 154.8 164.5 161.0

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 1.7 7.6 12.4

Net Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 163.1 59.4 727.2

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 213.0 153.6 880.8

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 376.1 213.0 153.6

Other Information

Interest paid
2.0 3.0 2.2

Income taxes paid
35.7 35.0 46.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

35
TELLABS ANNUAL REPORT 2008



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

We design and market equipment to telecommunications

service providers worldwide Our products and services

provide solutions to deliver wireline and wireless voice

data and video services for business and residential

customers We also provide deployment and professional

services that support our products

Principles of Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements include the

accounts of Tellabs and our subsidiaries We eliminate

all intercompany accounts and transactions

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity

with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions

that affect amounts reported in the financial statements

and accompanying notes Actual results could differ from

those estimates

Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid debt instruments purchased

with original maturities of three months or less to be

cash equivalents

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash

equivalents accounts receivable accounts payable

marketable securities and derivatives The carrying value

of the cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable

and accounts payable are reasonable estimates of their

fair value because of their short-term nature We deter

mine the fair value of marketable securities and deriva

tives based on observable inputs such as quoted prices

in active markets or other than quoted prices in active

markets that are observable either directly or indirectly

See discussion in Notes and regarding investments

and derivatives respectively

Accounts Receivable Allowances

We base our reserve for allowances on our assessment

of aged receivables and the collectibility of customers

accounts We regularly review the allowance by consid

ering factors such as customer financial strength the

age of accounts receivable balances current economic

conditions that may affect customers ability to pay

and historical experience As specific balances are

determined to be ultimately uncollectible they are

removed from our accounts receivable aging

Inventories and Suppliers

We determine inventory cost using the first-in first-out

method We value inventory at the lower of cost or

market with market determined at the lower of current

replacement cost or net realizable selling price We
determine the amount of inventory that is excess and

obsolete and purchase commitments in excess of

requirements using estimates of future demand for indi

vidual components of raw materials and finished goods

We outsource the manufacturing of our products to

third-party suppliers Although limited number of

suppliers are used to manufacture our products we

believe other suppliers could provide similar products

on comparable terms An inability of supplier to pro
vide product would cause near-term reduction of rev

enue which would affect operating results adversely

Property Plant and Equipment

We record property plant and equipment at cost We

compute depreciation using both the declining-balance

and straight-line methods Buildings are depreciated

over 25 to 40 years building improvements over

years leasehold improvements over the lesser of

the life of the lease or the useful life of the asset

currently to 15 years and equipment over to

10 years We evaluate property plant and equipment

for impairment whenever events or changes in circum

stances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset

may not be fully recoverable

Stock Options

At the beginning of 2006 we adopted the provisions

of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

SFAS 123R Share-Based Payments requiring us to

recognize expense related to the fair value of equity-

based compensation awards We elected to use the

modified prospective transition method and therefore

did not restate prior periods In addition we eliminated

the balance of deferred compensation expense in

Stockholders Equity against Additional paid-in cap/tal

on December 31 2005 as required by this statement

Income Taxes

We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the

future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of exist

ing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis at

enacted tax rates when such amounts are expected to be

realized or settled We provide valuation allowances if

based on the weight of available evidence it is more likely

than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not

be realized
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Goodwill

We currently have goodwill in the Services segment

Goodwill impairment is reviewed annually and when

impairment indicators exist by comparing the segments

net book value to fair value in accordance with SEAS 142

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The process of eval

uating the potential impairment of goodwill is subjective

because it requires the use of estimates and assumptions

We use the discounted cash flow method to estimate the

fair value of the segment This methodology requires us to

use estimates and judgments about the future cash flows

of the segment The assumptions used in our cash flow

forecasts are consistent with plans and estimates we use

to manage the underlying segment See the discussion in

Note regarding goodwill

Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets are made up primarily of purchased

technology and customer relationships from acquisitions

All assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives

and reviewed for impairment in accordance with

SEAS 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of

Long-Lived Assets when indicators of impairment exist

such as loss of customer relationships customer nonac

ceptance of our products and underlying technology and

reduced product margins indicating declining operating

performance or cash flows The estimated useful lives of

these assets are evaluated to determine if changes in an

estimate is required in accordance with SEAS 142

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The remaining car

rying value of the asset is amortized prospectively over

the remaining adjusted useful life of the asset The review

for potential impairment and change in estimated useful

lives requires us to use estimates and judgments of future

cash flows consistent with plans and estimates we use to

manage related product cash flows

Revenue Recognition

Determining the proper revenue recognition in our financial

statements requires us to make judgments about the

application of the accounting rules based on the facts and

circumstances of each customer arrangement

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an

arrangement exists delivery has occurred or services have

been rendered the price or fee is fixed or determinable and

collectibility is reasonably assured in accordance with the

guidance in the Securities and Exchange Commission Staff

Accounting Bulletin SAB No 104 Revenue Recognition

Contracts and customer purchase orders are generally

used to determine the existence of an arrangement

Shipping terms and related documents are used to verify

delivery or performance

The Company assesses whether the sales price is fixed

or determinable based on payment terms and whether the

sales price is subject to refund or adjustment If the fee is

not fixed or determinable revenue is recognized as pay

ments become due from the customer

Collectibility is assessed based on the creditworthiness

of the customer as determined by credit checks and the

customers payment history to the Company If collectibility

is not considered probable revenue is not recognized until

the fee is collected

The majority of our revenue comes from product sales

We generally recognize revenue either upon shipment or

upon delivery to the customer depending on the contrac

tual delivery terms

Some of our customer agreements contain acceptance

clauses that grant the customer the right to return or

exchange products that do not conform to specifications If

we do not have sufficient historical evidence of customer

acceptance we recognize revenue when the conditions of

acceptance have been met or the acceptance provisions

lapse When we have sufficient historical evidence that our

products meet the specifications we recognize revenue

upon shipment or delivery

Some customer agreements grant the right to return or

exchange product based on subjective criteria We accrue

for returns under the guidance of SEAS 48 Revenue

Recognition When Right of Return Exists based on histori

cal evidence of rates of return We recognize revenue net

of potential returns upon shipment or upon delivery of the

product to the customer

Some of our customer arrangements are in the form of

distribution agreements with contractual rights of return

promotional rebates and other incentives and credits We

recognize revenue net of estimated returns and rebates

which are calculated based on contractual provisions and

historical evidence of returns activity

We also recognize revenue from deployment services

support agreements training and professional services

Deployment services revenue results from installation of

our products at customer sites Installation services which

generally occur over short time period are not services

required for the functionality of our products as customers

may purchase installation services from us install our prod

ucts themselves or hire third parties to perform the instal

lation We recognize revenue for deployment services upon

completion We recognize revenue from support agreements

ratably over the service period We recognize training and

other professional services revenue upon completion

Some of our customer arrangements include multiple

deliverables such as product sales that include services to

be performed after delivery of the product In such cases

we apply the guidance in Emerging Issues Task Eorce

EITF 00-21 Revenue Arrangements with Multiple

Deliverables Generally we account for deliverable or

group of deliverables separately if the delivered

items has stand-alone value to the customer there

is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the

undelivered items included in the arrangement and if

we have given the customer general right of return rela

tive to the delivered items delivery or performance of the
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undelivered items or services is probable and substan

tially
in our control

We generally determine if objective and reliable evidence

of fair value for the items included in multiple-element

arrangement exists based on whether we have vendor

specific objective evidence VSOE of the price that we sell

an item for on stand-alone basis If we do not have VSOE

for the item we will use the price charged by vendor

selling comparable product or service on stand-alone

basis to similarly situated customers if available

When there is objective and reliable evidence of fair

value for all units of accounting in an arrangement we allo

cate the arrangement consideration to the separate units of

accounting based on their relative fair values In cases

where we have objective and reliable evidence of fair

value for the undelivered items in an arrangement but no

such evidence for the delivered items we allocate the

arrangement consideration using the residual method If

the elements cannot be considered separate units of

accounting or if we cannot determine the fair value of any

of the undelivered elements we defer revenue until the

entire arrangement is delivered or fair value can be

determined for all undelivered units of accounting

Once we have determined the amount if any of

arrangement consideration allocable to the undelivered

items we apply the applicable revenue recognition policy

as described elsewhere herein to determine when such

amount may be recognized as revenue

When an arrangement includes software that is more

than incidental we account for the transaction under the

provisions of Statement of Position SOP 97-2 Software

Revenue Recognition If the arrangement includes non-

software elements for which software is essential to

the functionality of the element those elements are

also accounted for under SOP 97-2 as prescribed in

EITF 03-0 Applicability of A/CPA Statement of Position

97-2 to Non-Software Deliverables in an Arrangement

Containing More-Than-Incidental Software

Many of our customer arrangements include the right to

invoice the customer for costs of shipping product to the

customers location In these cases we record the amount

included on the customers invoice for shipping costs as

revenue in accordance with EITF 00-10 Accounting for

Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs The cost of ship

ping products to customers is recorded as cost of revenue

EITF 06-03 How Taxes Collected from Customers and

Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should be Presented

in the Income Statement which was issued in 2006
allows revenue to be presented either gross or net of these

sales-related taxes We record revenue net of any sales-

related taxes that are billed to our customers We believe

this approach results in financial statements that are more

easily understood by investors

Earnings Per Share

We base earnings per share on the weighted average num
ber of common shares basic and the weighted average

common shares adjusted for assumed exercises of dilutive

stock options restricted stock and shares under the

employee stock purchase plan diluted We base earnings

per share in periods of net loss solely on basic weighted

average number of common shares under GAAP

Foreign Currency Translation

We generally measure the financial statements of our for

eign subsidiaries using the local currency as the functional

currency In such cases we translate assets and liabilities

at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and

we translate revenue and expenses at weighted average

exchange rates during the year We record the gain or loss

from translating subsidiarys stockholders equity into

U.S dollars as foreign currency translation adjustments in

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Foreign Currency Transactions

We recognize foreign currency transaction gains and

losses resulting from changes in exchange rates in

Other expense net

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2008 the Financial Accounting Standards

Board FASB issued FASB Staff Position FSP 132R-i

Employers Disclosures about Pensions and Other

Postretirement Benefits FSP 132R-i requires enhanced

disclosures about the plan assets of Companys defined

benefit and other postretirement plans This FSP is effec

tive for fiscal years ending after December 15 2009

FSP 132R-i will not impact our financial position or

results of operations because it only affects financial

statement disclosures

In May 2008 the FASB issued SEAS 162 The

Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

This statement identifies the sources of accounting

principles and how those accounting principles should be

used in preparing financial statements in accordance with

GAAP This statement was effective November 15 2008
SEAS 162 had no impact on our financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SEAS 161
Disclosures About Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities an amendment of SFAS 133 SEAS 161 is

designed to improve the transparency of an entitys finan

cial reporting by requiring enhanced disclosures about an

entitys derivative and hedging activities SEAS 161 is

effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning on or

after November 15 2008 SEAS 161 will not impact our

financial position or results of operations because it only

affects financial statement disclosures

In December 2007 the EASB issued SEAS 160

Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements an amendment of ARB No 51 SEAS 160

establishes accounting and reporting standards designed

to improve the relevance comparability and transparency

of the financial information provided in reporting entitys

consolidated financial statements SEAS 160 is effective



for fiscal years and interim periods beginning on or after

December 15 2008 SEAS 160 will not have material

impact on our financial statements However it could

impact our accounting for future transactions

In December 2007 the FASB issued SEAS 141R
Business Combinations SEAS 141R establishes pri nci

pies and requirements for an acquirer that are designed to

improve the relevance representational faithfulness and

comparability of information provided by reporting entity

in its financial reports about business combinations and

their effects SEAS 141R is effective prospectively to

business combinations with an acquisition date on or after

the beginning of the first annual reporting period begin

ning on or after December 15 2008 We adopted this

statement on January 2009 The impact of the adop

tion of SEAS 141R on our financial statements will

largely be dependent on the size and nature of the busi

ness combinations completed after the adoption of this

statement While SEAS 141R generally applies only to

transactions that close after its effective date the amend

ments to SEAS 109 Accounting for Income Taxes and

EASB Interpretation EIN 48 Accounting for Uncertainty

in Income Taxes are applied prospectively as of the adop

tion date and will apply to business combinations with

acquisition dates before the effective date of SEAS 141R

We estimate that approximately $14.4 million of unrecog

nized tax benefits associated with prior acquisitions if

recognized would impact income tax expense instead of

goodwill in future periods as result of SEAS 141R
We adopted the provisions of SEAS 157 Fair Value

Measurements for all financial assets and liabilities and

recurring non-financial assets and liabilities and SEAS 159

The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities including an amendment of SFAS 115 on

December 29 2007 The adoption of these standards had

no effect on our beginning retained earnings or current

earnings See Note Fair Value Measurements for addi

tional information In Eebruary 2008 the FASB issued

FASB Staff Position ESP 157-2 an amendment to the

Eair Value Measurements standard Based on the provi

sions of ESP 157-2 we have deferred adoption of

SEAS 157 to January 2009 for all non-recurring non

financial assets that include property plant and equipment

goodwill intangible assets and investments in partnerships

and start-up technology companies FSP 157-2 will not

have material impact on our financial statements

Restructuring and Other Charges

During the fourth quarter of 2008 management initiated

plan that resizes Tellabs business to reflect market condi

tions Restructuring actions under this plan include reduc

ing future investment in access products and freeing up

resources to focus on data and transport products The pre

tax restructuring charges for this plan are expected to be

approximately $23 million which includes approximately

$10 million in severance charges for workforce reductions

and $13 million for facility-
and asset-related charges In

the fourth quarter of 2008 we recorded $17.3 million of

which $10.3 million was for severance and $7.0 million

was for facility-related charges Cash payments under this

plan are expected to be approximately $16 million

Restructuring actions under this plan are expected to be

completed by the third quarter of 2009

During the second quarter of 2008 management initi

ated plan to consolidate several facilities as result of the

discontinuation of the Tellabs 8865 optical line terminal

The facility consolidations were also impacted by the head-

count reductions that were announced in September 2007

and January 2008 We incurred $12.4 million for this plan

of which $12.3 million was for facility reductions and

fixed asset write-downs and $0.1 million was for other

obligations Actions under this plan were completed in the

third quarter of 2008

During the first quarter of 2008 management commit

ted to plan to improve gross profit margins and reduce

operating expenses The pretax restructuring charges for this

plan are $12 million which includes $7 million in sever

ance charges for workforce reductions and $5 million in

facility- and asset-related charges We incurred $11.5 mil

lion in 2008 Remaining actions under this plan were com

pleted in January 2009 Total cash payments are expected

to be approximately $10 million of which $9 million was

paid in 2008 Severance cash payments totaled $6 million

and $3 million related to facility payments The remaining

cash payments of approximately $1 million related to sever

ance are expected to be completed in 2009

During the third quarter of 2007 management inititated

plan to beffer align resources with strategic business

objectives The primary activity was reduction of head-

count in both the Broadband and Transport segments By

the end of 2007 we reduced headcount by 126 and

recorded $5.5 million primarily in cash severance expense

related to those reductions We completed the objectives of

this plan in the fourth quarter of 2007

In the second quarter of 2006 management inititated

restructuring activities to reduce costs and better align

resources with internal needs and our customers require

ments The activities included consolidation of two order

configuration and distribution centers in North America

into single location and reduction of headcount in

both the Transport and Broadband segments We reduced

headcount by 126 employees during 2006 and closed

or consolidated two leased facilities as result These

activities have been completed The total expense of the

2006 restructuring plans was $9.2 million which

included $2.3 million in severance costs $6.7 million in

facility charges and $0.2 million in asset disposals all of

which were recorded in 2006

reduction of $0.3 million to prior restructuring plans

in 2008 primarily consists of reduction in severance An
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additional charge to restructuring expense in 2007 of

$0.3 million includes reduction of $0.1 million in sever

ance and an increase of $0.4 million in facility-related

charges Reductions to restructuring expense in 2006

totaled $1.2 million including $0.5 million in severance

and $0.7 million in facility-related charges The changes in

2008 2007 and 2006 are due to changes in estimates to

previous restructuring plans

Our accrual for restructuring plans as of January

2009 was $31.0 million The 2008 restructuring plans

balance of $18.5 million consists of $8.2 million in cash

severance that we expect to pay through the second quarter

of 2010 and $10.3 million in net lease obligations that

expire in 2015 The 2007 restructuring plan balance of

$0.1 million consists of cash severance that we expect to

pay through the first quarter of 2009 The $12.4 million

balance for previous restructuring plans relates to net lease

obligations that expire by 2011

The following table summarizes restructuring and other

charges recorded for the plans mentioned above as well as

adjustments to reserves recorded for
prior restructurings

in millions 2008 2007 2006

Severance and other

termination benefits $16.7 $5.4 $1.8

Facility and other

exit costs 23.6 0.4 6.2

Other obligations 0.6

Total restructuring and

other charges $40.9 $5.8 $8.0

The following table summarizes our restructuring and other charges activity by segment during 2008 and 2007 and

the status of the reserves at year end

in millions

2008 Restructuring Plans

Broadband $31.9 8.1 7.9 $15.9

Transport 5.2 2.1 1.6 1.5

Services 4.1 2.5 0.5 1.1

Subtotal 2008 Restructuring 41.2 12.7 10.0 18.5

2007 Restructuring Plan

Broadband 3.6 0.4 3.1 0.1

Transport 0.4 0.4
Subtotal 2007 Restructuring 4.0 0.4 3.5 0.1

Previous Restructuring Plans

Broadband 5.5 0.1 3.2 2.2

Transport 15.7 0.2 5.7 10.2

Subtotal Previous Restructuring 21.2 0.1 8.9 12.4

Total All Restructuring Plans $25.2 $40.9 $25.1 $1O.O $31.0

Balance at Restructuring cash Other Balance at

in millions 12/29/06 Expense Payments Activities1 12/28/07

2007 Restructuring Plan

Broadband 4.8 1.4 0.2 3.6

Transport 0.7 0.3 0.4

Subtotal 2007 Restructuring 5.5 1.7 0.2 4.0

2006 Restructuring Plans

Broadband 7.1 1.0 2.7 5.4

Transport 0.2 0.2

Subtotal 2006 Restructuring 7.3 1.0 2.7 5.6

Previous Restructuring Plans

Broadband 0.2 0.1 0.1

Transport 22.6 0.7 6.4 15.5

Subtotal Previous Restructuring 22.8 0.7 6.5 15.6

Total All Restructuring Plans $30.1 5.8 $10.9 0.2 $25.2

Other activities include the effects of
currency translation write-downs of property plant and equipment to be disposed and other changes in the reserve

that do not flow through restructuring expense

Balance at Restructuring

12/28/07 Expense

cash

Payments

Other Balance at

Activities1 1/2/09
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

In 2006 we began reporting operations in multiple seg

ments Broadband Transport and Services Due to the

change in operating segments goodwill was allocated to

each operating segment beginning in 2006 based on

each segments proportional fair value

We test each operating segment for possible goodwill

impairment by comparing each segments net book value

with fair value in accordance with SEAS 142 Goodwill

and Other Intangible Assets We review goodwill annually

for impairment unless potential interim indicators exist

that could result in impairment

In the third quarter of 2008 we performed an interim

review on all three operating segments since market

capitalization was less than book value for sustained

period and we continued to face challenging market condi

tions The process of evaluating the potential impairment

of goodwill is subjective because it requires the use of

estimates and assumptions We use the discounted cash

flow method to estimate the fair value of each operating

segment This methodology requires the use of estimates

and judgments about the future cash flows of the operat

ing segments Although we base cash flow forecasts on

assumptions that are consistent with plans and estimates

we use to manage the underlying operating segments

there is significant judgment in determining the cash

flows attributable to these operating segments As result

of our interim review we recorded goodwill impairment

charge of $988.3 million of which $594.2 million

related to the Broadband segment and $394.1 million

related to the Transport segment completely eliminating

their goodwill balances The Services segment did not

incur an impairment of its goodwill since the fair value

of the segment was determined to be greater than the

carrying value

During the fourth quarter of 2008 we tested the

Services segment for possible goodwill impairment as part

of our annual review As the Services segments fair value

was greater than its net book value and no impairment

indicators existed further impairment tests were not

deemed necessary and no impairment loss was recorded

In 2008 we reduced goodwill by $0.2 million due

to state tax audit settlement of subsidiarys pre

acquisition year In 2007 we made adjustments of

$0.6 million related to the adoption of FIN 48

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes which

resulted in reduction of our tax benefit associated with

prior acquisitions

The allocation of goodwill and goodwill activity by

segment follows

2008 2007

In millions Broadband Transport Services Total Broadband Transport Services Total

Beginning balance 593.9 394.0 $122.6 $1110.5 $592.3 $392.9 $122.2 $1107.4

Reductions/additions 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.6

Currency translation

adjustments 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.4 1.3 0.9 0.3 2.5

Impairment 594.2 394.1 988.3

Ending balance $122.4 122.4 $593.9 $394.0 $122.6 $1110.5

Intangible Assets

We amortize intangible assets with finite lives on straight-

line basis over their estimated useful lives Trade names/

trademarks are amortized over months customer rela

tionships/backlog over months to years developed

technology over to years and leasehold estates over

to 10 years

In accordance with SEAS 144 Accounting for the

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets intangible

assets are reviewed for impairment when events or cir

cumstances indicate their carrying amount may not be

recoverable Based on recent business conditions

review of intangible assets was completed for the third

quarter of 2008 Based on this review we recorded

charge of $0.6 million for impaired developed technology

related to the Tellabs 1100 access platform due to

reduced demand No impairment was recorded in 2007

In 2006 we recorded charge of $1.4 million for

impaired developed technology related to the Tellabs

1600 small business aNT based on reduced demand

The impairment adjustments for 2008 and 2006 are

included in Intangible asset amortization Total impair

ment for these assets relate to the Broadband segment

In accordance with the provisions of SEAS 142 we

review the estimated useful lives of intangible assets to

determine if events or circumstances warrant change in

the remaining useful life of an asset During the fourth

quarter of 2008 the estimated useful lives of some of

our developed technology and customer relationships

changed due to revised sales projections related to access

products and customers thus increasing accumulated

amortization by approximately $1.2 million
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The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of intangible assets subject to amortization are

as follows

In millions 1/2/09 12/28/07

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated

Assets Amortization Net Assets Amortization Net

Developed technology $149.2 $123.8 $25.4 $149.2 $102.4 $46.8

Customer relationships/backlog 34.2 13.5 20.7 34.2 10.6 23.6

Trade name/trademarks 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Leasehold estates1 2.9 1.0 1.9 4.6 1.2 3.4
Total $182.5 $138.3 $44.2 $180.8 $113.8 $67.0

Leasehold estates as of January 2009 reflects net reclass of $1.1 million to Restructuring and other charges due to the consolidation of facility

The estimated amortization expense for each of the

next five years follows

In millions

2009 $23.2

2010 9.8

2011 3.8

2012 3.8

2013 3.8

Fair Value Measurements

We adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 Fair Value

Measurements for all financial assets and liabilities and

recurring non-financial assets and liabilities and SEAS 159
The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities including an amendment of SFAS 115 on

December 29 2007

SEAS 157 Fair Value Measurements defines fair

value establishes fair value hierarchy that prioritizes

the sources used to measure fair value and expands

disclosures about fair value measurements SEAS 157

clarifies that fair value is an exit price representing the

amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid

to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants As such fair value is market-based

measurement that should be determined based on

assumptions that market participants would use in pricing

an asset or liability As basis for considering such

assumptions SEAS 157 establishes three-tier fair value

hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring

fair value as follows

Level Observable inputs such as quoted prices

in active markets

Level Inputs other than the quoted prices in

active markets that are observable either directly or

indirectly and

Level Unobservable inputs in which there is little

or no market data which require the reporting entity

to develop its own assumptions

financial instruments level within the fair value

hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is

significant to the fair value measurement In determining

fair value for recurring financial assets and liabilities we

separate our financial instruments into three categories

marketable securities other marketable securities and

stock loan and derivative financial instruments These

assets and liabilities are all valued based on the market

approach that uses prices and other relevant information

generated by market transactions involving identical or

comparable assets or liabilities

Marketable Securities

We use third-party provider to determine fair values of

marketable securities The third-party provider receives

market prices for each marketable security from variety

of industry standard data providers security master files

from large financial institutions and other third-party

sources with reasonable levels of price transparency The

third-party provider uses these multiple prices as inputs

into pricing model to determine weighted average

price for each security We classify U.S Treasury bills and

bonds as Level based upon quoted prices in active

markets All other marketable securities are classified as

Level based upon the other than quoted prices with

observable market data The type of instruments valued

based upon the observable market data include U.S gov
ernment sponsored enterprise agency debt obligations

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation EDIC-backed

corporate debt obligations investment grade corporate

bonds state and municipal debt obligations mortgaged

backed debt obligations guaranteed by Government

National Mortgage Association GNMA certain EDIC

backed bank certificates of deposit foreign government

debt obligations and foreign corporate debt obligations

guaranteed by foreign governments

Other Marketable Securities and Stock Loan

We classify holdings in other marketable securities Cisco

common stock and the related stock loan as Level in

the fair value hierarchy We classify these as Level since

they are actively traded through governed exchange
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Derivative Financial Instruments

Our foreign currency forward contracts are executed as

exchange-traded Market participants can be described

as large money center or regional banks Exchange-traded

derivatives typically fall within Level or Level in the

fair value hierarchy depending on whether they are

deemed to be actively traded or not

We have elected to value derivatives as Level using

observable market data at the measurement date and

standard valuation techniques to convert future amounts

to single present amount discounted Mid-market

pricing is used as practical expedient for fair value

measurements Key inputs for currency derivatives are the

spot rate interest rates and credit derivative markets The

spot rate for each currency is the same spot rate used for

all balance sheet translations at the measurement date

The following values are calculated from commonly

quoted intervals available from third-party financial

information provider Forward points and LIBOR rates are

used to calculate discount rate to apply to assets and

liabilities One-year credit default swap spreads are used

to discount derivative assets all of which have final

maturities of less than 12 months We calculate the

discount to the derivative liabilities to reflect the poten

tial credit risk to lenders and have used the spread over

LIBOR based on the credit risk of our counterparties

Each asset is individually discounted to reflect our

potential credit risk and we have used the spread over

LIBOR based on similar credit risk We do not adjust

the fair value for immaterial credit risk

We have applied valuation method for financial

assets and liabilities and recurring non-financial assets

consistently during this period and prior periods The

following table sets forth by level within the fair value

hierarchy Financial instruments owned at fair value As

required by SFAS 157 assets and liabilities are classified

in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is

significant to the fair value measurement

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on

recurring basis are

Fair Value Measurements at January 2009

Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Other

Markets for Observable

Balance at Identical Assets Inputs

1/2/09 Level Level
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Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

Level
In millions

Assets

Investments in marketable securities

U.S government debt obligations $223.5 $223.5

U.S government-sponsored enterprise agency

debt obligations 103.4 103.4

Municipal tax-exempt debt obligations 36.9 36.9

Corporate debt obligations guaranteed by FDIC 69.5 69.5

Corporate debt obligations 41.9 41.9

Mortgaged backed debt obligations guaranteed by GNMA 35.4 35.4

Certificates of deposit guaranteed by FDIC 33.7 33.7

Foreign government debt obligations 214.5 214.5

Foreign corporate debt obligations guaranteed

by foreign governments
17.2 17.2

Subtotal 776.0 223.5 552.5

Other marketable securities 179.1 179.1

Derivative financial instruments 3.4 3.4

Total Assets $958.5 $402.6 $555.9

Liabilities

Stock loan $179.1 $179.1

Total Liabilities $179.1 $179.1



We deferred adoption of SEAS 157 for all non-recurring

non-financial assets per the provisions of FSP 157-2

which include property plant and equipment goodwill

intangible assets and investments in partnerships and

start-up technology companies

Of our available-for sale debt obligations at January

2009 $236.4 million have contractual maturities of

less than 12 months $504.3 million have contractual

maturities of greater than one year up to five years and

$35.3 million have contractual maturities greater than

five years

Gross unrealized gains related to fixed-income securi

ties were caused by interest rate fluctuations Gross

unrealized losses related to fixed-income securities were

primarily due to changes in market conditions that caused

spreads to widen and interest rate fluctuations for fixed

income securities We review investments held with

unrealized losses to determine if the loss is other-than-

temporary We evaluated near-term prospects of the

security in relation to the severity and duration and our

Investments

We account for investments in marketable securities at

market prices with the unrealized gain or loss less

deferred income taxes shown as separate component of

stockholders equity We base realized gains and losses on

specific identification of the security sold At January

2009 and December 28 2007 available-for-sale mar
ketable securities consisted of the following

Amortized

cost

Unrealized Unrealized

Gain Loss

Fair

Value

intent and ability to hold the security for period of time

sufficient to allow for an anticipated recovery Based on

our review we determined that it was reasonable to

assume that some of our investments would not recover

to fair value due to the severity and duration of the

impairment We recognized other-than-temporary impair

ments of $0.8 million for the year ended January

2009 and $5.2 million for the year ended December 28
2007 For all other investments we determined that our

ability and intent to hold these investments for reason

able period of time sufficient for forecasted recovery of

fair value was reasonable and do not consider these

investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at

January 2009 No other-than-temporary impairments

were recorded for the year ended December 29 2006

In millions

2008

U.S government debt obligations 223.4 $0.5 $0.4 223.5
U.S government-sponsored enterprise

agency debt obligations 102.0 1.4 103.4

Municipal tax-exempt debt obligations 36.8 0.1 36.9

Corporate debt obligations guaranteed by FDIC 68.3 1.2 69.5

Corporate debt obligations 42.2 0.2 0.5 41.9

Mortgaged backed debt obligations guaranteed by GNMA 35.3 0.2 0.1 35.4

Cerfificates of deposit guaranteed by FDIC 33.7 33.7

Foreign government debt obligations 211.9 2.9 0.3 214.5

Foreign corporate debt obligations guaranteed

by foreign governments 17.1 0.1 17.2

Total 770.7 $6.6 $1.3 776.0

2007

U.S government debt obligations 80.7 $0.6 $0.1 81.2

U.S government-sponsored enterprise

agency debt obligations 256.9 2.7 259.6

Municipal tax-exempt debt obligations 283.4 1.7 285.1

Corporate debt and asset-backed obligations 184.7 1.0 1.5 184.2

Foreign government debt obligations 73.4 0.1 0.2 73.3

Foreign bank and corporate debt obligations 103.9 0.7 0.4 104.2

Preferred and common stocks 18.6 0.7 17.9

Total $1001.6 $6.8 $2.9 $1005.5
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Investments in marketable securities with unrealized losses at January 2009 and December 28 2007 were as follows

Unrealized Loss Unrealized Loss

Less than 12 months Greater than 12 months Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

In millions Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

2008

U.S government debt obligations 4.0 $44.6 $0.4 48.6 $0.4

Corporate debt obligations 17.2 0.4 6.6 0.1 23.8 0.5

Mortgaged backed debt obligations

guaranteed by GNMA 16.6 0.1 16.6 0.1

Foreign government debt obligations 15.6 0.3 15.6 0.3

Total 21.2 $0.4 $83.4 $0.9 $104.6 $1.3

2007

U.S government debt obligations 28.8 $0.1 28.8 $0.1

Corporate debt and asset-backed

obligations 53.5 1.2 11.1 0.3 64.6 1.5

Foreign government debt obligations 31.2 0.1 15.1 0.1 46.3 0.2

Foreign bank and corporate debt

obligations 50.9 0.3 10.7 0.1 61.6 0.4

Preferred and common stocks 3.8 0.7 3.8 0.7

Total $168.2 $2.4 $36.9 $0.5 $205.1 $2.9

The following table presents gross realized gains and losses related to fixed income investments

Year Ended

In millions 1/2/09 12/28/07 12/29/06

Gross realized gains 19.3 3.2 0.6

Gross realized losses1 22.9 8.7 1.1

Total 3.6 $5.5 $0.5

Includes other-than-temporary impairments of $0.8 million for the year ended January 2009 and $5.2 million for the year ended December 28 2007

As result of our acquisition of Advanced Fibre

Communications Inc AFC in 2004 we acquired

10.6 million shares of Cisco common stock shown as

Other marketable securities in Current Assets AFC owned

this stock as result of its investment in privately held

Cerent Corporation which was acquired by Cisco in 1999

In 2000 AFC entered into two three-year hedge contracts

pledging all of the Cisco stock to secure the obligations

under the contracts When the hedge contracts matured

in 2003 AFC entered into stock loan agreements with

lender borrowing 10.6 million shares of Cisco stock to

settle the hedge contracts on the Cisco stock The aggre

gate amount of the fair values of those stock loans is

reflected as current liability on our balance sheets as of

January 2009 and December 28 2007 The values of

both the asset and liability move in tandem with each

other since each is based on the number of shares we

hold at the current stock price At January 2009

Other marketable securities and Stock loan was

$179.1 million at market price of $16.96 per share

and $291.0 million at market price of $27.56 per

share at December 28 2007 The fees for 2008 associ

ated with the stock loan agreement were $1.7 million

In addition to the above investments we maintain

investments in partnerships and in start-up technology

companies We recorded these investments in Other

Assets These investments totaled $8.7 million recorded

at cost at January 2009 and $21.3 million

$19.8 million recorded at cost and $1.5 million

recorded at fair value at December 28 2007
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We review each investment in our portfolio quarterly

including historical and projected financial performance

expected cash needs and recent funding events We rec

ognize other-than-temporary impairments if the market

value of the investment is below its cost basis for an

extended period of time or if the issuer has experienced

significant financial declines or difficulties in raising

capital to continue operations Other-than-temporary

impairments were $9.9 million for the year ended

January 2009 and are included in Other expense

net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Other-than-temporary impairments were $0.5 million

for the year ended December 28 2007 and $7.0 million

for the year ended December 29 2006 During 2006 we

recorded net gain of $5.5 million to Other Comprehensive

Income on available-for-sale securities as the investment

was converted from preferred to public common shares

The investment had an aggregate value of $7.5 million

Derivative Financial Instruments

Financial Contracts and Market Risk

We conduct business on global basis in U.S and foreign

currencies so our financial results are subject to risks

associated with fluctuating foreign exchange rates To

mitigate these risks we have foreign currency exposure

management program which uses derivative foreign

exchange contracts to address nonfunctional currency

exposures that are expected to be settled in one year or

less We enter into derivative foreign exchange contracts

only to the extent necessary to meet our goal of mitigating

nonfunctional foreign currency exposures We do not enter

into hedging transactions for speculative purposes The

derivative foreign exchange contracts consist of foreign

currency forward and option contracts

Derivative financial contracts involve elements of

market and credit risk not recognized in the financial

statements The market risk that results from these

contracts relates to changes in foreign currency exchange

rates which generally are offset by changes in the value of

the underlying assets or liabilities being held Credit risk

relates to the risk of nonperformance by counterparty to

one of our derivative contracts We do not believe there

is significant credit risk associated with our hedging

activities We monitor the counterparties credit ratings

and other market data to minimize credit risk In addition

we also limit the aggregate contract amount entered into

with any one financial institution to mitigate credit risk

Non-designated Hedges

We use derivative contracts to manage overall foreign

currency exposures that are remeasured through income

We record these contracts on the balance sheet at fair

value Changes in the fair value of these contracts

excluding forward points are included in earnings as part

of Other expense net We had net losses of $2.4 million

in 2008 net gains of $2.2 million in 2007 and net gains

of $9.0 million in 2006 Receivables resulting from the

contracts are included in Miscellaneous receivables and

other current assets while payables from the contracts

are included as part of Other accrued liabilities We

recorded expense related to forward points in Other

expense net of $1.5 million in 2008 $1.0 million in

2007 and $1.5 million in 2006 We do not engage in

hedging specific individual transactions We held deriva

tives designated as non-designated hedges at the end of

the year

Our net foreign currency exposure is diversified among

broad number of currencies The notional amounts

reflected in the following table represent the U.S dollar

values of the agreed-upon amounts that will be delivered

to third party on the agreed-upon date

Notional Value of

Forward contracts

In millions 1/2/09 12/28/07

Related forward contracts to sell foreign currencies for Euro 78.6 $146.3

Related forward contracts to buy foreign currencies for Euro 3.2 57.6

Related forward contracts to buy foreign currencies for Australian dollar 25.0 11.6

Related forward contracts to sell foreign currencies for British pound 15.1 15.8

Related forward contracts to buy foreign currencies for Brazil real 14.6

Related forward contracts to sell foreign currencies for U.S dollar 11.2 13.8

Related forward contracts to buy foreign currencies for U.S dollar 2.8 2.1

Related forward contracts to sell foreign currencies for Singapore dollar 1.1 1.3

Related forward contracts to buy foreign currencies for Philippine peso 0.8

Total $152.4 $248.5

Pursuant to our policy we entered into the above contracts immediately prior to the respective year-ends Accordingly the fair value of such contracts was

nominal as of January 2009 and December 28 2007
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Cash Flow Hedges

We use derivative contracts designated as cash flow

hedges to mitigate currency risk related to an imbalance

of nonfunctional currency denominated costs and related

revenue We conducted monthly effectiveness tests of our

derivative contracts on spot-to-spot basis which

excludes forward points We recorded expense related to

forward points in Other expense net of $0.5 million in

2008 $0.4 million in 2007 and income of $0.4 million

in 2006 Effective gains and losses from derivative con

tracts are recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive

income until the underlying transactions are realized at

which point they are reclassified to Total cost of revenue

Ineffectiveness of derivative contracts is recorded to

Other expense net We did not have any ineffective deriv

ative contracts in 2008 We recorded nominal amount

of ineffectiveness in 2007 If it becomes probable that an

anticipated transaction that is hedged will not occur we

immediately reclassify the gains or losses related to that

hedge from Accumulated other comprehensive income to

Other expense net At January 2009 we had net

unrealized gain of $2.9 million in Accumulated other

comprehensive income which is expected to be reclassi

fied to income within the next 12 months at the

prevailing market rate We held derivatives designated as

cash flow hedges at the end of the year

In millions

Related forward contracts to buy foreign

currencies for Euro $43.4 $66.7

Related option contracts to buy foreign

currencies for Euro $15.6

Pursuant to our policy we entered into the above contracts immediately

prior to the respective year-ends Accordingly the fair value of such con

tracts was $3.4 million as of January 2009 and nominal as of

December 28 2007

Net Investment Hedges

During 2008 we entered into foreign currency forward

contracts to hedge portion of our net investment in one

of our foreign subsidiaries to reduce economic currency

risk Changes in the fair value of these contracts due to

Euro exchange rate fluctuations are recorded as foreign

currency translation adjustments within Accumulated

other comprehensive income As of January 2009 we

had net unrealized gain of $7.4 million in Accumulated

other comprehensive income We recorded expense

related to forward points in Other expense net of

$0.6 million in 2008 We held net investment hedges

for the aggregate contract amount of 100 million Euros

at January 2009

In millions

Related forward contracts to sell

foreign currencies for U.S dollar $139.7

Pursuant to our policy we entered into the above contracts immediately

prior to the respective year-end Accordingly the fair value of such con

tracts was nominal as of January 2009

Product Warranties

We provide warranties for all of our products The specific

terms and conditions of those warranties vary depending

on the product We provide basic limited warranty

including parts and labor for all products except access

products for periods ranging from 90 days to years The

basic limited warranty for access products covers parts

and labor for periods ranging from to years

Our estimate of warranty liability involved many factors

including the number of units shipped historical and

anticipated rates of warranty claims and cost per claim

We periodically assess the adequacy of our recorded

warranty liability and adjust the amounts as necessary

The decline in accruals for product warranties issued

during 2008 represents lower number of units shipped

lower anticipated rates of warranty claims and lower

cost per claim Other adjustments to accruals for product

warranties issued represent reductions due to favorable

experience to previous estimates

We classify the portion of our warranty liability that we

expect to incur in the next 12 months as current liabil

ity We classify the portion of our warranty liability that we

expect to incur more than 12 months in the future as

long-term liability

Our product warranty liabilities are as follows

In millions 1/2/09 12/28/07 12/29/06

Balance beginning of year 49.1 45.0 49.2

Accruals for product

warranties issued 12.8 24.0 31.8

Settlements 13.0 13.6 25.0

Other adjustments

to accruals for product

warranties issued 9.6 6.3 11.0

Balance end of year 39.3 49.1 45.0

Balance sheet classification

at end of
year

Other accrued liabilities 19.1 25.1 23.3

Other long-term liabilities 20.2 24.0 21.7

Total product warranty

liabilities 39.3 49.1 45.0

Notional Value of

Forward contracts1

1/2/09 12/28/07

Notional Value of

Forward Contracts1

1/2/09 12/28/07
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Equity-Based Compensation

The Tellabs Inc Amended and Restated 2004 Incentive

Compensation Plan provides for the grant of short-term

and long-term incentives including stock options stock

appreciation rights SARs restricted stock and perform

ance stock units PSUs Stockholders approved

53889977 shares for grant under the plan of which

33744112 remain available for grant at January

2009 Under the 2004 plan and predecessor plans we

granted awards at market value on the date of grant On

April 24 2008 stockholders approved the Tellabs Inc

Amended and Restated 2004 Incentive Compensation

Plan which authorized 14750000 shares for issuance

At the beginning of our first quarter of 2006 we

adopted the provisions of SEAS 123R which require us

to recognize expense related to the fair value of our

equity-based compensation awards We elected to use the

modified prospective transition method and therefore did

not restate prior periods Therefore we eliminated the

balance of deferred compensation in Stockholders Equity

against Additional paid-in capital as of December 31

2005 as required by this statement

Stock Options

Stock options granted in 2008 2007 and 2006 generally

vest over three years from the date of the grant We recog

nize compensation expense on straight-line basis over

the service period based on the fair value of the stock

options on the grant date Compensation expense for

stock options was $11.0 million in 2008 $21.9 million

in 2007 and $38.3 million in 2006 Options granted but

unexercised expire 10 years from the grant date

We estimate the fair value of stock options using the

Black-Scholes option-pricing model This model requires

the use of assumptions that will have significant impact

on the fair value estimate The following table summarizes

the assumptions used to compute the weighted average

fair value of current period grants

2008 2007 2006

Expected volatility 46.3% 41.2% 46.3%

Risk-free interest rate 3.0% 4.5% 4.8%

Expected term in years 4.5 4.6 4.5

Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

We based our calculation of expected volatility on

combination of historical and implied volatility for options

granted We based the risk-free interest rate on the U.S

Treasury yield curve in effect at the date of grant We

estimated the expected term of the options using their

vesting period post-vesting employment term nation

behavior and historical exercise patterns

The following is summary of stock option activity during 2008 and status at January 2009

Outstandingbeginning of year

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited/expired

Outstandingend of year

Exercisableend of year

Shares expected to vest

Weighted average fair value of options

granted during 2008

Shares

36988654

1896400

313062
5720074

32851918

29703254

32573810

Weighted Average

Exercise Price

$17.25

5.25

2.52

$14.82

$17.12

$18.11

$17.21

2.20

Weighted Average

Remaining contractual

Term in years

Aggregate

Intrinsic value

in millions

4.2 $0.4

3.7

4.1

0.3

0.4

48



The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table

represents the total pretax intrinsic value based on our

closing stock price as of January 2009 that the option

holders would have received had all holders exercised

their options as of that date The aggregate intrinsic value

of exercised stock options was $0.9 million in 2008

$13.2 million in 2007 and $50.3 million in 2006

As of January 2009 we had $7.4 million of unrec

ognized compensation cost related to stock options that

we expect to recognize over weighted average period of

1.8 years The weighted average fair value of stock

options granted was $4.21 in 2007 and $5.70 in 2006

Cash-Settled Stock Appreciation Rights

The Tellabs Inc Amended and Restated 2004 Incentive

Compensation Plan also provides for the granting of

cash-settled SARs in conjunction with or independent of

the stock options under the plans These SARs allow the

holder to receive in cash the difference between the cash-

settled SARs grant price the market value of our stock

on the grant date and the market value of our stock on

the date the holder exercises the SAR These cash pay

ments were negligible in 2008 and 2007 and $0.1 mil

lion in 2006 The cash-settled SARs are generally

assigned 10-year terms and typically vest over three years

from the grant date At January 2009 there were

264463 cash-settled SARs outstanding with exercise

prices that ranged from $3.83 to $70.06 The weighted

average price of the 78400 cash-settled SARs granted in

2008 was $5.29 The weighted average price of the

151243 cash-settled SARs granted in 2007 was

$10.24 The weighted average price of the 71300 cash-

settled SARs granted in 2006 was $11.62

Restricted Stock

We granted 2205603 restricted shares in 2008

2903869 restricted shares in 2007 and 1114227

restricted shares in 2006 Of the shares granted in 2008

2065603 shares vest over three-year period 100000

shares vest over two-year period and 40000 shares vest

over one-year period Of the shares granted in 2007

1448723 shares vest over three-year period 1415146

shares vest over two-year period and 40000 shares vest

over one-year period Of the shares granted in 2006

1047621 shares vest over two-year period and 66606

shares vest over one-year period We recognize compensa

tion expense on straight-line basis over the vesting peri

ods based on the market price of our stock on the grant

date Compensation expense was $15.3 million in 2008

$10.2 million in 2007 and $7.9 million in 2006 The

weighted average issuance price of restricted stock granted

in 2008 was $5.46 per share The weighted average

issuance price of restricted stock granted in 2007 was

$9.84 per share The weighted average issuance price of

restricted stock granted in 2006 was $12.98 per share

Non-vested stock award activity for 2008 follows

Weighted Average

Grant Date

Fair Value

$10.28

5.46

$10.80

_______________________________
8.76

7.19

As of January 2009 we had $17.0 million of

unrecognized com pensation cost related to restricted

stock that we expect to recognize over weighted average

period of 1.8 years

Performance Stock Units

We granted 777000 PSUs in 2008 375000 PSLJs in

2007 and 270000 PSUs in 2006 The PSUs granted

in 2008 would have entitled the recipients to receive

shares of our common stock commencing in March 2009

contingent on the achievement of our operating income

and revenue-based targets for the 2008 fiscal year

Following achievement of these financial measures and

subject to continued employment one-third of such

shares would have been issued in annual installments in

March 2009 March 2010 and March 2011 At minimum

target performance we would have issued one-half share

for each PSU granted and at maximum target performance

we would have issued two shares for each PSU granted

The weighted average price of PSUs granted in 2008 was

$5.40 per share Since 2008 performance fell below

threshold performance none of the PSUs were earned

no expense was incurred and no amounts will be paid

out with respect to them

The PSUs granted in 2007 would have entitled the

recipients to receive shares of our common stock com

mencing in March 2008 contingent on the achievement

of company operating income and revenue-based targets

for the 2007 fiscal year None of the 2007 grants were

earned since 2007 performance fell below threshold

performance The weighted average issuance price of

the PSUs granted in 2007 was $12.53 per share

The PSUs granted in 2006 entitle the recipients to

receive shares of our common stock in March 2008

contingent on the achievement of cumulative company

operating income and revenue-based targets for the 2006

and 2007 fiscal years Based on cumulative actual per

formance in 2006 and 2007 we issued 44000 shares

of the total PSUs based on attainment tied to the revenue

objective in the first quarter of 2008 The weighted

average issuance price of the PSUs granted in 2006 was

$11.37 per share Compensation expense for PSUs was

$0.1 million in 2008 credit of $0.3 million in 2007

and expense of $0.8 million in 2006 PSU activity for

2008 follows

Non-vestedbeginning of year

Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Non-vestedend of year

Shares

3221011

2205603

1473616
537173

341 5825
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Non-vestedbeginning of year

Granted

Vested

Cancel led

Non-vestedend of year

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the 2005 Tellabs Inc Employee Stock Purchase

Plan employees were able to elect to withhold portion

of their compensation to purchase our common stock at

85% of the fair market value on the date of purchase In

2007 384893 shares of common stock were purchased

under the plan with 8845990 remaining available for

purchase under the plan at January 2009

Compensation expense for the plan was $0.4 million in

2007 and $1.0 million in 2006 The weighted average

purchase price of shares purchased under the plan in

2007 was $9.03 Effective April 25 2007 we sus

pended the 2005 plan The final purchase for employees

enrolled through the date of suspension occurred on

April 30 2007

Equity-Based Compensation Expense

The following table sets forth the total equity-based

compensation expense resulting from stock options stock

appreciation rights restricted stock performance stock

units and the employee stock purchase plan suspended

effective April 25 2007

In millions 2008 2007

Cost of revenueproducts 2.3 2.5

Cost of revenueservices 3.3 3.5

Research and development 8.9 12.3

Sales and marketing 5.2 6.4

General and administrative 6.7 7.4

Equity-based compensation

expense before income taxes 26.4 32.1

Income tax benefit 8.8 11.0
Total equity-based compensation

expense after income taxes $17.6 $21.1

10 Employee Benefit and Retirement Plans

401k Plans

Our U.S.-based employees may participate in the Tellabs

401k Plan Upon meeting eligibility requirements we

match dollar-for-dollar up to the first 4% of the

employees percentage contribution Both employee and

employer contributions are vested immediately The plan

provides for discretionary Company contribution which

is subject to Board of Directors approval and is funded

entirely by us The amount of the contribution is based on

percent of pay for specific period as declared by the

Board All 401k eligible employees actively employed on

the last business day of the declared period are immedi

ately eligible to receive this fully vested contribution The

investment of these funds follows the participants elec

tions on file for the program The Board of Directors

declared 2% contribution in 2008 2007 and 2006

We maintain similar plans for the benefit of eligible

employees at our Finland and Denmark subsidiaries

Our contributions to these programs were $25.6 million

in 2008 $26.5 million in 2007 and $25.3 million in 2006

Deferred Income Plan

We provide Deferred Income Plan that permits certain

officers and management employees to defer portions of

their compensation All deferrals prior to September

2001 were guaranteed fixed return In September 2001
we adopted new deferred income plan 2001 Plan

which offered multiple investment tracking funds with

returns based on market performance All deferrals into the

2001 plan were invested in the new fund options

Participants with balance from the prior plan had that

balance rolled into fixed return fund which was not open

to new deferrals or transfers from other investment funds

Money could be moved out of the fixed return fund into the

other investment options Effective January 2008 the

2001 plan was transitioned into new Internal Revenue

Code Section 409a compliant plan the Tellabs Deferred

Income Plan 2008 2008 Plan The 2008 Plan provided

participants the one-time opportunity to elect distribution

of their account balances from the 2001 Plan and also

eliminated the fixed return fund All remaining balances in

the fixed return fund were transferred into the 2008 Plan

options selected by the participants As of January

2009 the $12.8 million long-term portion of the deferred

income obligation is included in Other Long-Term

Liabilities and the $2.0 million current portion is included

in Other accrued liabilities Adjustments to reflect changes

in the fair value of the amount owed to the employee are

made to the applicable liability account with correspon

ding charge or credit to compensation expense

Retiree Medical Plan

We maintain defined-benefit Retiree Medical Plan Under

the plan we provide qualified retirees with subsidy to off

set their medical costs and allow the retirees to participate

in the Company-sponsored healthcare plan We made

no contributions in 2008 or 2007 We currently do not

anticipate making contribution to the plan in 2009
as it is adequately funded

On December 29 2006 we adopted SEAS 158

Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and

Other Postretirement Plans SEAS 158 requires that we

recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of our

defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or liability

in the balance sheet with changes in the funded status

recognized through comprehensive income in the year in

Shares

555000

777000

44000
591000

697000

Weighted Average

Grant Date

Fair Value

$12.07

5.40

$11.37

$11.22

5.40



which they occur The impact of adoption was charge to

Accumulated other comprehensive income of $1.2 million

at December 29 2006

The following table summarizes benefit obligations

plan assets and funded status of the Retiree Medical Plan

In millions
2008 2007

Change in benefit obligation

Accumulated postretirement

benefit obligation

beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial gain

Benefits paid

Curtailment

Accumulated postretirement

benefit obligation end of year 9.1 $10.9

Change in plan assets

Assets at fair value

beginning of year
9.1 9.0

Return on plan assets 0.1 0.3

Benefits paid 0.2 0.2

Assets at fair value end of year 8.8 9.1

Funded status 0.3 1.8

The plans assets were 84% invested in guaranteed

income fund 8% invested in equity securities and 8%

invested in fixed income securities at January 2009

The plans assets were 100% invested in guaranteed

income fund indexed to the five-year Treasury at

December 28 2007 The actuarial gain in 2008 was

caused primarily by demographic changes and by

change in the participation assumption The actuarial

gain in 2007 was caused primarily by the change in the

discount rate assumption and by demographic changes

The curtailment of $0.8 million in 2008 is primarily due

to the reduction of employees during 2008

The following table summarizes components of net

periodic benefit cost of the Retiree Medical Plan

In millions 2008 2007 2006

Components of net periodic

postretirement benefit cost

Service cost 0.9 1.1 1.0

Interest cost 0.6 0.6 0.7

Expected return on assets 0.6 0.4 0.5

Amortization of actuarial gain 0.2

Amortization of unrecognized

prior service cost 0.1 0.1 0.1

Net periodic postretirement

benefit cost 0.8 1.4 1.3

Curtailment 0.6

Total cost for the year 0.2 1.4 1.3

The curtailment of $0.6 million in 2008 is primarily

due to the reduction of employees during 2008 We

amortize the prior service cost using straight-line

method over the average remaining years of service to full

eligibility for benefits of the active Retiree Medical Plan

participants We expect to amortize $0.1 million of unrec

ognized prior service cost and $0.2 million of actuarial

gain in 2009

The following table summarizes the weighted average

assumptions used to determine benefit costs and

benefit obligations

Discount rate used to

determine benefit costs

Discount rate used to determine

benefit obligation

Expected long-term rate of

return on assets

2008 2007 2006

There is no trend rate assumption required for this plan

because all liabilities are related to fixed-dollar subsidy

and are not related to medical claims Therefore any

change in future medical inflation trends or assumptions

will not affect the liabilities of this plan

The discount rates used increased in 2008 and 2007

due to the increase in the hypothetical zero coupon corpo

rate bond yield curve that replicates the cash flows of the

plan The expected long-term rate of return on assets

increased in 2008 due to changing the allocation of plan

assets to higher potential return categories

We study historical markets and preserve long-term

historical relationships between equities and fixed-income

securities consistent with the widely accepted capital

$10.9

0.9

0.6

2.3

0.2

0.8

$13.1

1.1

0.6

3.6

0.3

6.75% 5.75%

6.75% 6.75%

7.00% 5.00%

6.00%

5.75%

5.00%
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market principle that assets with higher volatility generate

greater return over the long run We evaluate current

market factors such as inflation and interest rates before

determining long-term capital market assumptions The

long-term portfolio return is established via building-block

approach with proper consideration of diversification and

rebalancing We review peer data and historical returns to

check for reasonableness and appropriateness

The following table presents estimated future benefit pay
ments for the Retiree Medical Plan as of January 2009

In millions

2009 $0.3

2010 $0.4

2011 $0.4

2012 $0.4

2013 $0.5

20142018 $3.2

There is $0.5 million of unrecognized prior service

cost net of tax and $3.2 million of unrecognized net

gain net of tax in Accumulated other comprehensive

income at January 2009

11 Income Taxes

Components of loss earnings before income taxes are

as follows

Loss earnings

$1042.6 0.2 $212.4

90.1 70.0 72.3

before income tax 952.5 $70.2 $284.7

The provision for income tax benefit expense consists

of the following

In millions 1/2/09 12/28/07 12/29/06

Current

Federal 25.7 2.2 28.7
State 0.1 0.1 7.9
Foreign 33.6 22.6 16.4

Subtotal 8.0 20.3 53.0
Deferred

Federal and state 17.4 11.8 36.4
Foreign 13.0 3.3 1.2

Subtotal 30.4 15.1 37.6
Total income tax

benefit expense 22.4 5.2 90.6

Deferred tax assets liabilities for 2008 and 2007 con-

sist of the following

In millions

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss and

tax credit carryforwards

Amortizable intangibles

Accrued liabilities

Inventory reserves

Deferred employee

benefit expenses

Deferred compensation plan

Restructuring accruals

Fixed assets and depreciation

Deferred revenue and

advance payments

Other

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Unrealized gain on

marketable securities 198.4 198.9
Fixed assets and depreciation 0.1
Other 7.3 2.7
Deferred tax liabilities $205.7 $2O1.7
Valuation allowance $113.8 43.0
Net deferred tax assets

liabilities 29.0 17.8

The net deferred income tax
liability decreased from

$17.8 million at December 28 2007 to net deferred

tax asset of $29.0 million at January 2009 The

$46.8 million change is attributable primarily to an

increase in the carryforward of net operating losses and

credits for the year as well as an increase in the amortiz

able intangible deferred asset resulting from the goodwill

impairment recorded in the third quarter of 2008 offset

by an increase in the valuation allowance during the year

Our deferred tax
liability includes $195.8 million

representing taxes that will be due on certain hedge

contract gains upon termination of our Stock loan

1/2/09 12/28/07

$139.1

74.1

38.3

38.2

20.5

12.0

11.2

2.7

1.0

11.4

348.5

94.9

9.9

31.3

34.9

23.1

13.0

8.8

2.3

8.7

226.9

In millions 2008 2007

Domestic source

Foreign source

2006



Reconciliation of the reported effective income tax

rates to the domestic federal income tax rate

In percentages

Statutory Federal income

tax rate

Goodwill impairment

Valuation allowance on

net domestic deferred

tax assets

Loss on investment in

subsidiary

Foreign earnings taxed at

different rates

Research and

development credits

Nondeductible equity-based

compensation expense

State income tax net of

federal benefits

Interest related to prior year

0.3 7.6 0.2

0.2 6.3 0.9

0.2 2.0 0.9

Effective income

tax rate 2.4% 7.4% 31.8%

In 2007 foreign earnings
taxed at different rates reflects benefit of

$12.4 million including interest related to the reversal of reserves no

longer required due to lapse
in the statute of limitations

Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance

SFAS 109 Accounting for Income Taxes requires that

valuation allowance be established when it is more likely

than not that all or portion of deferred tax asset will

not be realized Prior to 2008 we established valuation

allowances primarily for future tax benefits from capital

losses state net operating losses and state tax credits

with relatively short carryforward periods and certain for

eign net operating losses The loss incurred in the year

ended January 2009 and the net cumulative loss for

the current and prior two years represents sufficient neg

ative evidence under the provisions of SFAS 109 for the

Company to determine that the establishment of valua

tion allowance against domestic deferred tax assets is

appropriate This valuation allowance will offset assets

associated with future tax deductions as well as carryfor

ward items Until an appropriate level of profitability is

attained we expect to continue to maintain valuation

allowance on our net deferred tax assets related to future

U.S and certain non-U.S tax benefits

Years of Expiration

In millions 112/09 Beginning Ending

carryforwards

Foreign net operating

loss carryforwards

$98.0 2015 2028

25.7 2009 2028

13.7 no expiration

3.6 no expiration

2.6

Total $154.7

The income tax provision does not reflect the tax

savings resulting from deductions associated with our

equity-based compensation The tax benefit of $1.7 million

will be credited to Additional paid-in capital when those

benefits are used to reduce taxes payable

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes FIN 48

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on December 30

2006 As result we recognized decrease of $5.7 mil

lion in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits which

we accounted for as cumulative effect increase of

$6.3 million to retained earnings and an increase of

$0.6 million to goodwill balances at December 30 2006

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of

During 2008 our domestic valuation allowance increased

by $79.9 million due to our cumulative loss position Our

non-U.S valuation allowance decreased by $9.1 million

2008 2007 2006
including $4.6 million from the utilization of loss carry-

forwards and $4.5 million that favorably impacted tax

35.0% 35.0% 35.0% expense due to an increase in projected future profits in

29.5 one of our foreign subsidiaries

Summary of Carry forwards

8.7 4.9 3.1 We had the following tax net operating loss tax effected

and credit carryforwards as of January 2009

2.9

1.7 21.9 5.6
U.S net operating loss

1.5 15.7 3.3 and credit carryforwards

State net operating loss and

0.8 0.9 0.8 credit carryforwards

State credit carryforwards

0.6 4.9 1.6 Foreign net operating

loss carryforwards

U.S capital loss
tax matters

Tax exempt interest

Other net

11.1 2010 2013

2011 2018

El L.A FE AL FE PU RI 2028



January 2009 was $28.6 million reconciliation of

the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax

benefits is as follows

in millions 2008 2007

Balance beginning of year 63.8 $70.2

Additions based on tax positions

related to the current year 2.2 2.9

Additions for tax positions

of prior years 1.8 1.6

Reductions for tax positions of prior

years as result of lapse in the

statute of limitations 8.1
Reductions for tax positions of

prior years relating to settlements

with taxing authorities 39.2 2.8
Balance end of year 28.6 $63.8

The ending balance at January 2009 includes an

accrual of $24.5 million of unrecognized tax benefits that

if recognized would affect the effective tax rate We con

tinue to recognize interest and penalties related to income

tax matters as part of income tax expense Our tax provi

sion included $4.6 million of interest and penalties for

2008 and $5.3 million for 2007 The balance of interest

and penalties accrued was $9.8 million as of January

2009 and $12.6 million as of December 28 2007 At

January 2009 our noncurrent accrual for taxes and

interest was $37.4 million

It is reasonably possible that unrecognized benefits

related to federal income taxes will decrease by approxi

mately $8.0 million as result of the settlement of audits

or the expiration of statute of limitations within the next

12 months

It is reasonably possible that unrecognized benefits

related to state income taxes will decrease by approximately

$16.0 million as result of the settlement of audits or

the expiration of the statute of limitations within the next

12 months

It is reasonably possible that unrecognized benefits

related to foreign income taxes will decrease by approxi

mately $1.0 million as result of the settlement of audits

or the expiration of the statute of limitations within the

next 12 months

Investment in Foreign Operations

We do not provide deferred U.S income taxes and foreign

withholding taxes on the undistributed cumulative earn

ings of foreign subsidiaries because we consider such

earnings to be permanently reinvested in those operations

The undistributed cumulative earnings of foreign sub

sidiaries that are considered permanently reinvested out

side the United States were $517.7 million at January

2009 Upon repatriation of these earnings we would be

subject to U.S income tax net of available foreign tax

credits At January 2009 the estimated amount of

this unrecognized deferred tax
liability on permanently

reinvested foreign earnings based on current exchange

rates and assuming we are able to use foreign tax credits

was $87.3 million

Audits

We file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction

and various states and foreign jurisdictions We are no

longer subject to U.S federal state and local or non-

U.S income tax examinations by tax authorities in our

major jurisdictions for years before 2003 Our major juris

dictions currently include the United States California

Illinois Finland Denmark and Mexico During 2008 we

reached settlement with the Internal Revenue Service

IRS in connection with their examination of all tax years

prior to 2006 resulting in $34.8 million tax benefit Of

our major jurisdictions we are currently under audit by

the State of California for the 2004 through 2006 tax

periods We do not expect the outcome of tax examina

tions to have material effect on our consolidated

results of operations consolidated financial position

or cash flow

12 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income has no impact

on our net earnings loss but is reflected in our consoli

dated balance sheet through adjustments to stockholders

equity Accumulated other comprehensive income derives

from unrealized gains losses and related adjustments on

available-for-sale securities unrealized gains losses on

cash flow and net investment hedges foreign currency

translation adjustments unrecognized prior service

costs and unrecognized net gains losses on our retiree

medical plan



Accumulated other comprehensive income net of tax for 2008 2007 and 2006 consists of the following

13 Comprehensive Loss Income

Comprehensive income for the periods presented consists of net earnings unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale

securities reclassification adjustments for gains included in net earnings unrealized gains and losses on cash flow hedges

foreign currency translation adjustments unrealized gain on net investment hedges and unrecognized prior service costs and

net gains losses due to SEAS 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans

In millions

Net loss earnings

Other comprehensive income

Reclassification adjustment for gain included in net earnings net of

tax benefit of $1.5 in 2008 $1.7 in 2007 and $0.2 in 2006

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities net of tax expense

benefit of $2.5 in 2008 $1.8 in 2007 and $1.5 in 2006

Unrealized gain loss on cash flow hedges net of tax expense benefit

of $2.O in 2008 $0.2 in 2007 and $O.2 in 2006

Unrealized gain on net investment hedges

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Unrecognized prior
service cost net of tax expense benefit of

$0.0 in 2008 $O.1 in 2007 and $0.4 in 2006

Unrecognized net gain loss on retiree medical plan net of tax expense

benefit of $0.0 in 2008 $1.3 in 2007 and $0.3 in 2006

2.2 2.5 0.5

1.4 2.3 0.5

Total comprehensive loss income $937.6 $102.5 $231.9

JELLABSANNUAL. BE POPE 2008

in millions

Balance at December 30 2005

Unrealized Unrealized Unrecognized

Net Gain ILoss Net Gain Foreign
Net Gain

on Available- Loss on currency Unrecognized Loss on

for-Sale Cash Flow Translation Prior Service Retiree

Securities Hedges Adiustments Cost Medical Plan

$3.7 60.7

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

income

57.0

5.6

0.3

33.6

0.7

Unrealized net gain on securities 5.6

Net gain on cash flow hedges 0.3

Net translation gain
33.6

Unrecognized prior
service cost 0.7

Unrecognized net loss on retiree

medical plan
0.5 0.5

Reclassification adjustment for gain

included in net earnings 0.4 0.1 0.5

Balance at December 29 2006 1.5 0.2 94.3 $O.7 $O.5 94.8

Unrealized net gain on securities 3.0 3.0

Net loss on cash flow hedges 0.2 0.2

Net translation gain
34.9 34.9

Unrecognized net gain on retiree

medical plan
2.3 2.3

Reclassification adjustment for gain

included in net earnings 2.1 0.4 2.5

Balance at December 28 2007 2.4 $O.4 $129.2 $O.7 1.8 $132.3

Unrealized net gain on securities 2.9 2.9

Net gain on cash flow hedges 2.9 2.9

Net gain on net investment hedges 10.3 10.3

Net translation loss 23.0 23.0

Unrecognized prior service cost 0.2 0.2

Unrecognized net gain on retiree

medical plan
1.4 1.4

Reclassification adjustment for gain

loss included in net loss 2.6 0.4 2.2

Balance at Januarl 2009 2.7 2.9 $116.5 $O.5 3.2 $124.8

12/29/06

$194

1/2/09 12/28/07

$930.1 65.0

2.9

2.9

10.3

23.0

0.2

3.0

0.2

34.9

5.6

0.3

33.6

0.7



14 Segment Information
Consolidated revenue by segment follows

We report operating results for three segments Broadband

Transport and Services

The Broadband segment includes access managed

access and data product portfolios that facilitate the deliv

ery of bundled voice video and high-speed Internet/data

services over copper-based and/or fiber-based networks and

delivery of next-generation wireline and wireless services

Access offerings include the Tellabs 1000 multiservice

access series the Tellabs 1100 multiservice access series

and the Tellabs 1600 optical network terminal ONT
series Managed access products include the Tellabs 2300

cable telephony distribution system the Tellabs 6300

managed transport system and the Tellabs 8100 managed

access system Data products include the Tellabs 8600

managed edge system and the Tellabs 8800 multiservice

router series

The Transport segment includes solutions that enable

service providers to transport service and manage optical

bandwidth by adding capacity when and where its needed

Wireline and wireless carriers use these products within the

metropolitan portion of their transport networks to support

wireless services business services for enterprise cus

tomers and triple-play voice video and data services for

residential customers Product offerings include the

Tellabs 3000 voice-quality enhancement products the

Tellabs 5000 series of
digital cross-connect systems and

the Tellabs 7100 OTS

The Services segment delivers deployment support

professional consulting training and systems integration

services to our customers These services support all

phases of the network planning building and operating

We define segment profit as gross profit less research

and development expenses Segment profit excludes sales

and marketing expenses general and administrative

expenses the amortization of intangibles restructuring and

other charges the impact of equity-based compensation

which includes restricted stock and performance stock

units granted after June 30 2006 and stock options and

the goodwill impairment charge

imillions 2008 2007

Broadband 919.9 $1018.6

Transport 580.1 672.7

Services 229.0 222.1

Total $1729.0 $1913.4

2006

$1080.4

778.2

182.6

$2041.2

Segment profit and reconciliation to operating loss

earnings by segment follows

In millions

Broadband

Transport

Services

Total segment profit

Sales and marketing

expenses

General and

administrative

expenses

Eq ity- based

compensation

Intangible asset

amortization

Restructuring and

other charges

Goodwill impairment

Operating loss

earnings

2007 2006

39.1 120.4

237.5 414.5

72.2 65.7

348.8 600.6

170.0 176.6 179.8

101.8 99.1 113.5

14.3 17.6 23.9

23.9 22.5 28.6

$970.0 27.2 246.8

The segments use many of the same assets For internal

reporting purposes we do not allocate assets by segment

and therefore no asset depreciation and amortization or

capital expenditure by segment information is provided to

our chief operating decision maker

During 2008 revenue from two customers accounted

for 33% and 16% of consolidated revenue In 2007 rev

enue from two customers accounted for 37% and 16% of

consolidated revenue In 2006 revenue from three cus
tomers accounted for 27% 12% and 11% of consolidated

revenue We attribute revenue to customers based on the

effective date of any relevant merger Revenue from these

major customers is earned in each of the three operating

segments

2008

$115.7

178.0

75.5

369.2

40.9 5.8 8.0
988.3



Consolidated revenue by country based on customer

location follows

in millions 2008 2007 2006

United States $1174.0 $1398.6 $1524.7

All other countries 555.0 514.8 516.5

Total $1729.0 $1913.4 $2041.2

Long-lived assets by country follow

In millions 1/2/09 12/28/07

United States $396.5 $1423.8

Finland 53.9 80.3

All other countries 20.0 19.4

Total $470.4 $1523.5

15 Operating Lease Commitments

We have number of operating lease agreements primarily

involving office space buildings and office equipment

These leases are non-cancelable and expire on various

dates through 2028 As of January 2009 future

minimum lease commitments under non-cancelable

leases are as follows

in millions

2009 9.4

2010 6.2

2011 3.9

2012 3.7

2013 3.2

2014 and thereafter 3.7

Total minimum lease payments $30.1

Total future minimum lease payments have not been

reduced by $0.5 million of future sublease payments

to be received under non-cancelable subleases

Total rental expense was $11.0 million for 2008

$18.4 million for 2007 and $20.2 million for 2006

16 Stock Repurchase Programs

On February 2005 our Board of Directors authorized

the purchase of up to $300 million of our outstanding

common stock As of August 2006 we purchased

32.0 million shares of our common stock at total cost

of $300 million completing this program This includes

purchases of $107.4 million 7.6 million shares during

fiscal 2006

On January 26 2006 our Board of Directors author

ized the purchase of up to $100 million annually of our

outstanding stock under Rule lOb5-1 of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended On April 27 2006

our Board of Directors authorized the removal of the

$100 million cap from this share repurchase program We

intend to continue to use cash generated by employee

stock option exercises other than those of company offi

cers and board members to repurchase stock in the man

ner provided under this program As of January 2009

we had purchased 7.3 million shares of our common

stock under this program since February 2006 at total

cost of $91.6 million including $0.9 million 0.2 million

shares in 2008 On January 29 2009 our Board of

Directors authorized one-year extension of this program

On July 31 2006 our Board of Directors authorized

repurchase program of up to $300 million of our out

standing common stock As of February 2008 we had

purchased 37.0 million shares of our common stock

under this program at total cost of $300 million

completing this program This total includes purchases

of $29.9 million 4.6 million shares in 2008

On November 2007 our Board of Directors author

ized repurchase program of up to $600 million of our

outstanding common stock As of January 2009 we

had purchased 19.7 million shares of our common stock

under this program at total cost of $122.9 million

leaving $477.1 million available to be purchased under

this program We may repurchase shares under the

authorized open market program periodically during open

trading windows when we do not possess material non

public information We provide no assurance that we will

continue our repurchase activity and we may change our

repurchase activity in the future

In addition during 2008 we purchased 0.4 million

shares for $2.0 million to cover withholding taxes on

shares issued under employee stock plans In 2007 we

purchased 0.2 million shares for $2.2 million to cover

withholding taxes on shares issued under employee

stock plans

We record repurchased shares as Treasury stock
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17 Loss Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of net loss earnings per share

In millions except per-share data

Numerator

Net loss earnings

Denominator

Denominator for basic net loss earnings per share

weighted average shares outstanding

Effect of dilutive securities

Employee stock options and awards

18 Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

Selected quarterly financial data for 2008 and 2007 follows

in millions except per-share data

2008

Revenue

Gross profit

Net earnings loss

Earnings loss per share

Basic

Diluted

2007

Revenue

Gross profit

Net earnings

Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

2008 2007

$930

2006

400.1

65.0 $194.1

436.6 445.9

4.5 8.2

Denominator for diluted net loss earnings per share

adj usted weighted average shares outstanding

and assumed conversions 400.1 441.1 454.1

Net loss earnings per share basic 2.32 0.15 0.44

Net loss earnings per share diluted 2.32 0.15 0.43

Under U.S GAAP dilutive securities are not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share when

company is in loss position Diluted weighted average shares outstanding were 400.9 million in 2008 The number of

anti-dilutive securities excluded from the weighted average shares outstanding computation was 35.0 million in 2008
21.7 million in 2007 and 17.0 million in 2006

First Quarter Second Quarter

464.1 432.5 424.1 408.3

177.9 150.2 162.2 169.8

16.6 39.0 998.5 12.8

0.04 0.10 2.51 0.03

0.04 0.10 2.51 0.03

451.9 534.5 457.9 469.1

185.9 187.6 144.3 156.5

25.5 29.6 3.6 6.3

0.06 0.07 0.01 0.01

0.06 0.07 0.01
--

0.01

The per-share computation for the year is separate annual calculation Accordingly

per-share amounts does not necessarily equal the annual per-share amount

the sum of the quarterly



5-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data Unaudited

Gross profit

Operating loss earnings

Loss earnings before income tax

Net loss earnings

Net loss earnings per share

Net loss earnings per share diluted

Weighted average shares

outstanding diluted

Total assets

Total liabilities

Stockholders equity

-39.1% 2.2%

4.20 6.70

3228 3716

7088 7356

6.7% 6.3%

10.26 10.90

3713 3609

7678 8262

-1.2%

8.59

4125

8035

In millions except per-share employee

and stockholder data

Statement of Operations Data

Revenue

Balance Sheet Data

20O8 2007 2006 2005 2OO4

1729.0 1913.4 $2041.2 1883.4 $1231.8

660.1 674.3 933.6 855.0 657.0

970.0 27.2 246.8 188.8 31.7

952.5 70.2 284.7 213.1 10.2

930.1 65.0 194.1 175.8 29.8

2.32 0.15 0.43 0.39 0.07

2.32 0.15 0.43 0.39 0.07

400.1 441.1 454.1 454.5 420.2

2508.2 3746.6 $3922.4 3514.9 $3545.1

661.7 833.3 984.1 700.2 747.9

1846.5 2913.3 2938.3 2814.7 $2797.3

130.8 133.4 320.1 258.4 214.7

1395.2 1438.7 1470.4 1347.8 $1298.9

305.2 343.1 356.9 344.0 250.3

Other Information

Net cash provided by operating activities

Working capital

Research and development expense

Return on average stockholders equity

Stock price at year-end

Number of employees

Number of stockholders

Research and development expense does not include purchased in-process research and development costs of $2.2 million in 2005 and

$102.1 million in 2004

For 2008 represents the number of stockholders at February 20 2009 For 2007 represents the number of stockholders at February 15 2008 For

2006 represents the number of stockholders at February 16 2007 For years 2005 2004 represents the number of stockholders at the record date

for the next annual meeting of stockholders

Includes non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $988.3 million

Includes the acquisition of AFC in November 2004
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Board of Directors Structure and Process

Tellabs is managed by and under the direction of its Board of Directors

Each director who is not an officer of the Company receives an annual retainer for board service and for

committee service In addition each committee chair receives an annual retainer Each director receives

equity compensation Details can be found in the Tellabs 2009 proxy statement

The board has an audit and ethics committee nominating and governance committee and

compensation committee

Members of the audit and ethics committee are Michael Lavin Chair Linda Wells Kahangi

William Souders and Jan Suwinski

Nominating and governance committee members are Stephanie Pace Marshall Chair Bo Hedfors

Linda Wells Kahangi Fred Krehbiel and Michael Lavin

Compensation committee members are William Souders Chair Frank lanna Stephanie Pace Marshall

and Jan Suwinski

Corporate Governance and Bylaws

Tellabs is committed to remaining responsive to stockholders strengthening our corporate governance

and adopting the best practices of major public companies The Tellabs Board of Directors has amended

the companys bylaws to update the advance notice and indemnification provisions These changes are

reflected in Tellabs Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws at www.tellabs.com/investors/by-laws_012909.pdf

The advance notice provisions of the bylaws govern the manner in which stockholders may nominate

candidates for election to the Board of Directors and propose other business to be conducted at annual and

special meetings of stockholders separate from the Companys proxy statement The proposed amendments

to these provisions are intended to facilitate orderly meetings of stockholders and informed voting decisions

The indemnification provisions of the bylaws were modified in order to update such provisions to enhance

protections available to the directors and officers of the Corporation and to increase the Corporations

ability to attract and retain highly qualified directors and officers
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MchaeIJ Brck 71 chairman and co-founder of Tellabs

Chairman since 2000 chief executive officer 2002-2004

chief executive officer and president 1975-2000 Director

Molex lncorporated M.S.E.E. New York University

B.S.E.E Purdue University Teilabs director since 1975

Robert Puuen 46 president and chief executive offk..er

since 2008 Vice president and general manager of global

services 2005-2008 senior vice president of North

American sales 2002-2005 various management

engineering and sales positions 1985-2002 Chairman

emeritus executive board of Telecommunications Industry

Association M.B.A Northwestern University B.S

University of illinois Tellabs director since 2008

John Brots 48 e.xecutive vice president global opera

tions since 2005 Vice president of supply chain manage

ment 2004 vice president o..f
North American operations

2000-2003 various operations and management positions

1988-2003 M.B.A St Edwards University B.S
Cameron University

Roger Heinz 46 executive vice president global sales

and services since 2008 President IP-NGN core business

unit at Aicatel-Lucent 2006-2008 vice president con

verged IP core solutions vice president Sprint sales and

various management positions at Lucent Technologies

1999-2006 Senior positions at Astral Point

Communications Lucent Technology and ATT Bell

Laboratories 1986-1999 M.S.E.E Cornell University

B.S.E.E University of Illinois

Jean Hofley 49 executive vice president and chief infor-

mation officer since 2.005 Senior vice president and chief

information officer 2004 Chief information officer at USC

Corp 1998-2003 Various positions at Waste Management

1989-1998 Director VASCO Data Security International

Inc M5 blinois Institute of Technology B.S University

of Missouri-Rolla

Dane KeHy 47 executive vice president global prod

ucts since 2007 Executive vice president transport prod

ucts 2004-2007 Various engineering and management

positions 1985-2004 M.B.A University of Chicago

M.S.E.E and B.S.EE tiniversity of Notre Dame

RIzwan Khan 42 executive vice president global market

ing since 2008 Senior vice president of global marketing

2005 -2008 various director roles including Tellabs APAC

region 2001-2005 engineering and management posi

tions at Motorola Newhridge and Siemens 1988-2001

B.S.E.E lJniversity of Engineering and Technology Lahore

Pakistan

Dr Vikram Saksena 52 executive vice president and chief

technology officer since 2008 CTO at Sonus Networks

2003-2008 various positions as CTO and chief architect

at start-ups MaxComm Technologies and Narad Networks

as well as Cisco 1998-2003 responsible for data network

infrastructure at ATT 192-1998 Senior member of the

IEE.E Ph.D and MS in E.E University of llhnois

B.S.E.E Indian Institute of Technology

James Sheehan 46 chief administrative officer since

2005 General counsel and secretary since 2002 vice

president and deputy general counsel 2000-2002 director

and assistant general counsel 1995-2000 J.D University

of Illinois College of Law B.S University of Illinois

Timothy Wggns 52 executive vice president and chief

financial officer since 2003 Executive vice president and

chief financial officer at Chicago Bridge Iron Company

NV 1996-2001 various senior financial and operating

management positions at Fruehauf Trailer Corporation and

Autodie Corporation 1983-1996 Certified Public

Accountant B.S Michigan State University

The Tetabs eadersh4 team noudes eft to Hght Owes Khan Oms Kety Or Vi tram Sakseoa ichaei BOck Robert PuRee Thoothy

WiggOs Jean Hotey Jobs Brots James Sheehan and Roger Heinz



Glossary

3G Mobile Wireless networks built for digital voice and MPLS MultiProtocol Label Switching packet-switching

high-speed data including video standard that assigns levels of priority to multiple traffic types

4G Mobile The future generation of wireless networks designed

within data stream to assure Quality of Service QoS

to offer broadband speeds and integrate different types of mobile MSPP Multiservice Provisioning Platform system that

technology
consolidates the number of separate devices needed to provide

Access Equipment that provides connection between service
transport switching and routing services

providers central offices and homes businesses and other user Multiservice Router network switch that handles both data

locations and the real-time transmission of video and voice with high

ATM Asynchronous Transfer Mode high-speed high-bandwidth
reliability and quality

transmission technology that carries data traffic in fixed-size cells Network system of equipment and connections for the

Backhaul Aggregating and transmitting traffic from remote sites

transmission of signals that carry voice video and data

to main transmission network Network Management set of procedures software equipment

Bandwidth The carrying capacity of communications channel
and operations techniques designed to keep network operating at

maximum efficiency

Bluetooth Technology that enables short-range wireless

communications for example between mobile phone and
ONT Optical Network Terminal device that connects fiber-

wireless headset
access network to home or business to deliver voice data and

video services

Broadband high-bandwidth fiber optic coaxial or hybrid line

with more capacity than voice-grade phone line which is capable
Optical Transport Technology that transmits communications

of carrying numerous voice data and video channels at once
traffic in the form of laser light over fiber-optic cable

Carrier Ethernet scalable manageable carrier-class network
Professional Services Services such as network optimization

that delivers standardized Ethernet services with Quality of Service
business case analysis and network performance enhancements

and high levels of reliability
Pseudowire virtual connection that transports both traditional

Data Any network traffic other than voice phone calls Increasingly

and new services over converged packet network

phone calls and video are encoded and transported as data Q0S Quality of Service Measurement of integrity of traffic

Deployment Services Services such as installation training
moving over network QoS is especially important for real-time

and support
transmissions such as financial transactions voice and video

Digital Systems that transport information in the binary is and
ROADM Reconfigurable Optical Add/Drop Multiplexer

Os format like computer code to improve clarity and quality
system that enables the remote configuration of any wavelength on

any network element reducing the need to dispatch technicians

Digital Cross-Connect specialized high-speed data channel

switch that connects transmission paths based on network needs
SDH Synchronous Digital Hierarchy Transport format for

rather than call by call Digital cross-connects manage and
transmitting high-speed digital information over fiber-optic

reroute network traffic and combine consolidate and segregate

facilities outside of North America comparable to SONET

signals to maximize efficiency SONET Synchronous Optical NETwork Transport format for

Dynamic Optical Networking self-tuning optical network with
sending high-speed digital signals through fiber-optics in North

dynamic provisioning and restoration of wavelengths
America comparable to SDH

Ethernet data network standard to connect computers
TDM Time Division Multiplexing Technology that combines

printers workstations terminals and servers
multiple streams of traffic by assigning timeslots sequentially in

turn from each input onto combined higher speed channel

Fiber Access Fiber-optic systems that extend to homes or

neighborhoods to deliver broadband services including voice data
Transport The process of moving voice data or video across

and video
communications networks

Frame Relay Switching interface standard that transmits bursts
Triple-Play Services Offering of voice video and data from

of data over wide-area networks WAN5 single service provider

Internet The worlds largest decentralized network of computers
VoD Video on Demand service that enables consumers to

and network servers

watch video program when they choose to

IP Internet Protocol Rules that enable cooperating computers
VQE Voice Quality Enhancement technique that improves

to share information across network
sound quality by isolating

and filtering out unwanted signals and

sounds such as echoes and background noise

Managed Access An access and transport system that simplifies

end-to-end management of mobile transport and business services
Wireless Mobile networks that use radio frequency rather than

cables

Mobile Wireless communications networks that use radio

frequencies rather than cables
Wireline Networks that use cables rather than radio frequency
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Information for Our Investors

Ownership Structure and

Investor Rights

Stockholder class and voting rights

All Tellabs stockholders are entitled

to one vote for each share held

Only stockholders of record as of

March 2009 the record date for

the annual meeting determined by

the board of directors are entitled

to receive notice of to attend and

to vote at the annual meeting

Votes cast in person or by proxy at

the annual meeting of stockholders

will be tabulated by the inspectors

of election appointed for the meet

ing who determine whether

quorum majority of the shares

entitled to be voted is present

Stockholders Owning More than 5% of

the Companys Shares

as of Dec 31 2008
Michael Birck

Third Avenue Management

Stockholder Logistics

Stockholder proposals including

director nominations must comply

with the rules of the SEC and the

requirements of our bylaws for inclu

sion in our proxy statement Such

proposals or nominations must be

received no later than November 17
2009 We strongly encourage any

stockholder interested in submitting

proposal or director nomination to

contact our Corporate Secretary

James Sheehan in advance of this

deadline to discuss the proposal

If you wish to present proposal or

director nomination before our 2010
Annual Meeting but you do not

intend to have your proposal

included in our 2010 proxy state

ment your proposal must be deliv

ered no earlier than January

2010 and no later than January 31
2010 Any such proposal must con

tain among other things the text of

any proposed business description

of certain agreements arrangements

and understandings having bearing

on the nomination or proposal and

disclosure of your economic interest

in the Company

The Companys bylaws set specific

requirements for making stockholder

proposals and nominating director

candidates

Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws

Tellabs certificate of incorporation

and bylaws are available online at

www.tellabs.com/investors

Code of Ethics

Tellabs code of ethics and global

business policy are available online at

www.tellabs.com/about/ethics.shtml

Important Dates for Stockholders

Dates subject to change

First Quarter 2009

Record Date for Annual Meeting

March 2009

Earnings Call Tuesday April 28

730 a.m Central time

Second Quarter 2009

Annual Meeting Friday May

Earnings Call Monday July 27

730 a.m Central time

Third Quarter 2009

Earnings Call Monday Oct 26

730 a.m Central time

Were Here to Help You

You can get investor information

online at www.tellabs.com/investors

or contact Tom Scottino senior

manager investor relations at

1.630.798.3602 or

tom.scottino@tellabs.com

Transfer Agent

Computershare Investor Services

serves as the stock transfer agent

for Tellabs If you need to transfer

stock change ownership report lost

or stolen certificates or change your

address please contact

Computershare Investor Services at

1.312.360.5389
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Requests for Information

Additional information is available

without charge For additional copies

of annual reports 10-Ks 1O-Qs or

other financial information please

visit www.tellabs.com/investors or

contact

Secretary

Tellabs Inc

One Tellabs Center

1415 West Diehi Road

Naperville IL 60563

U.S.A

Or visit www.sec.gov

Stock Trading Information

Tellabs stock is traded in the United

States listed on the NASDAQ Stock

Market under the symbol TLAB It

appears in newspaper stock tables

as Tellabs Tel labs is component of

the NASDAQ Global Select Market

Ocean Tomo 300TM Patent Index the

Standard Poors 500 Index and

several corporate responsibility

indexes including FTSE4G00d and

eight KLD indexes

Trademarks

All trademarked or registered trade

mark product and service names

used herein are the property of

Tellabs or one of its affiliates in

the United States and/or in other

countries All other product or

company names used herein may

be the property of their respective

companies

Annual Meeting

The 2009 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders will be held at p.m
Central time on Friday May

2009 at

Northern Illinois University

1120 East Diehl Road

Naperville IL 60563

U.S.A

Doors will open at p.m

Internet users can hear simultane

ous live webcast of the annual

meeting at www.tellabs.com

Electronic Voting

As an added convenience stock

holders can vote their proxy by mail

by phone at 1.800.690.6903

or via the Internet at

www proxyvote.com

Independent Auditors

Ernst Young LLP

Chicago IL U.S.A

The Tellabs Foundation

The Tellabs Foundation supports

nonprofit organizations in the priority

areas of education environment

and health For information contact

Meredith Hilt executive director

of Tellabs Foundation at

meredith.hilt@tellabs.com

Worldwide Locations

Please visit www.tellabs.com and see

the Tellabs Locations section for

the most up-to-date complete infor

mation on Tellabs global presence

The Contact Us page also provides

easy access to the right people

For Information

In Asia Pacific

Phone 65.6215.6411

Fax 65.6215.6422

In Europe Middle East and Africa

Phone 44.870.238.4700

Fax 44.870.238.4851

In Latin America and Caribbean

Phone 1.954.839.2800

Fax 1.954.839.2828

In North America

Phone 1.630.798.8800

Fax 1.630.798.2000

How to Reach Us

One Tellabs Center

1415 West Diehl Road

Naperville IL 60563 U.S.A

Phone 1.630.798.8800

Fax 1.630.798.2000

www.tellabs.com

Report printed entirely on recycled paper

2008 Tellabs All rights reserved

Printed in U.S.A

On the back cover

Product and service innovators

Among Tellabs employees innovating

for customers are left to right Cecil

Deisch in Naperville Ill Jing Shi in

Raleigh N.C and Vesa Hokkanen and

Ville Hallivuori in Espoo Finland
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